
February 2023 
Board Packet 



 
 

************ 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

************ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTE: Overflow parking is available at Little Canada City Hall Parking Lot 

  
 

Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, February 1, 2023 

6:30 PM  
This month’s meeting will be held at the District office (2665 Noel Drive, Little Canada, MN) but also via 
the video conferencing platform Zoom. Board members, staff, consultants, and general public will be able 
to join in person OR via video and/or phone. In order to continue to be sensitive to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
we may need to limit the number of public in the board room. The public will be able to listen to meeting 
but not participate with the exception of the visitor comments portion of the agenda. Instructions for 
joining in on the Zoom meeting can be found after the agenda.  

1. Call to Order – 6:30 PM 
2. Approval of Agenda (pg. 3) 
3. Recognition of Outgoing Board Members – Lawrence Swope and Dianne Ward (pg. 5) 
4. Consent Agenda: To all be approved with one motion unless removed from consent agenda for 

discussion.  
A. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes January 18, 2023 (pg. 8) 
B. Treasurer’s Report and Bill List (pg. 11) 
C. Stewardship Grant Program 

i. 23-01 CS  Owasso Heights Townhomes (pg. 22) 
D. District Liability Insurance Coverage Waiver (pg. 24)  

5. Visitor Comments  (limited to 4 minutes each) 
6. Permit Program 

A. Applications 
i. 23-02 Caretta Assisted Living, Maplewood (pg. 28) 

ii. 23-03 Ramsey County Hodgson Road Reconstruction, Shoreview (pg.44) 
iii. 23-04 Dunkin Donuts, North St. Paul (pg. 52) 
iv. 23-05 MnDOT I-94 Maintenance & Safety Improvements (pg. 57) 
v. 23-06 Xcel Energy Roseville 0802 Line Rebuild, Roseville (pg.66) 

B. Enforcement Action Report (pg. 74) 
7. Stewardship Grant Program  

A. Applications – See consent agenda 
B. Budget Status Update (pg. 77) 

8. Action Items - NONE 
9. Attorney Report 
10. Board Issues, Policies and Operation (for discussion at meeting) 

A. Board Action Log: Additions, deletions 
11. New Reports and/or Presentations 

A. Considerations for per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in the watershed district 
Presentation (no packet materials) 

B. South RWMWD Evaluation of Flood Control Options/Resiliency Study for Battle Creek 
and Fish Creek Drainage Areas (pg. 79) 

12. Administrator’s Report (pg. 83) 



Board Meeting Agenda     

2 
 

A. Meetings Attended 
B. Upcoming Meetings and Dates 
C. Ongoing Project Updates 
D. Annual Meeting Reminder 
E. Minnesota Watersheds Updates 

13. Project and Program Status Reports (pg. 101) 
Project Feasibility Studies 

A. Interim Emergency Response Planning 
B. Kohlman Creek Flood Risk Feasibility Study 
C. Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake Diversion Feasibility Study 
D. County Ditch 17 Improvements Feasibility Study  
E. Phalen Village Feasibility Study 
F. Ames Lake Area Flood Risk Reduction Planning Study 
G. Owasso Basin/North Star Estates Improvements 
H. Double Driveway Pond Optimization Study 
I. Carver Ponds Improvement Study 
J. South Metro Mississippi River TSS TMDL 

Research Projects 
K. Kohlman Permeable Weir Test System 
L. Shallow Lake Aeration Study 

Capital Improvements 
M. Target Store Stormwater Retrofit Projects 
N. Targeted Retrofit Projects  
O. Stewardship Grant Program Support 
P. Lake Emily Subwatershed Regional BMP 
Q. Pioneer Park Stormwater Reuse 

CIP Project Repair and Maintenance 
R. Beltline and Battle Creek Inspection 
S. 2023 CIP Maintenance and Repair Project 
T. 2023-2025 BMP Maintenance Program  

New Technology Review 
U. Edible Plants in Native Plant Community Restoration 

Program Updates 
V. Natural Resources Program  
W. Public Involvement and Education Program 
X. Communications Program and Website 

14. Manager Comments and Next Month’s Meeting 
A. Board Action Log (pg. 118) 

15. Adjourn 



    

 

Presented to 

in recognition and grateful appreciation for  

five years of dedication, leadership, and service  

to the Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District. 

February 23, 2023 

 

   _________________________________________________________________ 

 Tina Carstens, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

  

 



    

 

Presented to 

in recognition and grateful appreciation for  

six years of dedication, leadership, and service  

to the Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District. 

February 23, 2023 

 

   _________________________________________________________________ 

 Tina Carstens, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 
 

************ 
Consent 
Agenda 

 
 
 

************ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District 
Minutes of Special Board Meeting 

   January 18, 2023 
 
The Special Meeting of January 18, 2023 was held at the District Office Board Room, 2665 Noel Drive, Little Canada, 
Minnesota, and via Zoom web conferencing, at 5:00 p.m. This special meeting's purpose was to complete the 
business action items that were postponed from the January 4, 2023 regular meeting due to the change in that 
meeting’s format of being only virtual. A video recording of the meeting can be found at 
https://youtu.be/OT5ADOkaheY. Video time stamps included after each agenda item in minutes. 
 
PRESENT: ABSENT: 
Larry Swope, President  
Dianne Ward, Vice President Matt Kramer, Manager 
Val Eisele, Treasurer 
Dr. Pam Skinner, Secretary (arrived 5:08 p.m.)   
 
ALSO PRESENT: 
Tina Carstens, District Administrator 
Erin Anderson Wenz, Barr Engineering 
Paige Ahlborg, Watershed Project Manager   
Mark Gernes, Maplewood Resident  
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by President Swope at 5:05 p.m.  
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (00:25) 
Motion:  Manager Ward moved, Manager Eisele seconded, to approve the agenda as presented.   
 
A roll call vote was performed: 
 
Manager Ward  aye 
Manager Eisele  aye 
President Swope  aye 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA (00:40) 
A.    Approval of Meeting Minutes December 7, 2022 
B.  Approval of Meeting Minutes January 4, 2023  
C.  Treasurer’s Report and Bill List 
D.  Permit Program 

i.     23-01 Phalen Village – Maryland/Prosperity, St. Paul 
 
Motion:  Manager Eisele moved, Manager Ward seconded, to approve the consent agenda as presented.   
 

https://youtu.be/OT5ADOkaheY


Page 2 January 18, 2023, RWMWD Minutes 
Special Board Meeting 

A roll call vote was performed: 

Manager Eisele  aye 
Manager Ward  aye 
President Swope aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 

4. VISITOR COMMENTS (1:08)
No comments.

5. ACTION ITEMS (1:25)
A. Project Reports and Support to Proceed

President Swope stated that all action items were presented and discussed during the Regular Board Meeting of 
January 4, 2023. 

Action items are as follows: 

Phalen Village Flood Risk Reduction Feasibility Study: Direct staff to coordinate with the city of Maplewood staff to 
complete final design of flood risk reduction modifications included in Option 5 of the feasibility study such that 
modifications can be constructed at the same time as the City’s 2025 street improvement project.  

Ames Lake Flood Risk Reduction Prefeasibility Study: Direct staff to complete a detailed feasibility study for the two 
feasible locations for system modifications identified in the prefeasibility study for reducing the flood risk in the 
Ames Lake area. 

County Ditch 17 Flood Risk Reduction Feasibility Study: Direct staff to coordinate with the city of Maplewood on 
property owner outreach regarding the site specific modifications and emergency response plans. Direct staff to 
work with the district attorney to prepare a letter template to property owners that provides information on 100-
year water levels and available resources to property owners in flood-prone areas. 

Lake Emily Targeted Retrofit Project: Direct staff to advance the Arbogast underground filtration chamber to final 
design, and develop 100% engineering drawings and specification, contract documents, and 100% engineer’s 
opinion of probable cost.  

Double Driveway Pond and Fish Creek Improvements Scope Summary: Direct staff to implement the scope of work 
as presented in the Double Driveway Pond and Fish Creek Tributary Improvements scope summary.  

Motion:  Manager Ward moved, Manager Eisele seconded, to accept the request for board action on all five items.  

Further discussion: Manager Ward requested clarification regarding the Phalen Village Flood Risk Reduction 
Feasibility Study. She stated that the survey has not been completed, but the city wants to complete the project for 
other reasons. She asked for confirmation that the city would pay for the project if carrying it out independently of 
the study, as she does not want to move forward with this type of project without first conducting a survey. 

President Swope stated that if property owners within the project area are contacted, we will have to ensure that: 
1) we are being consistent with FEMA standards, and 2) we do everything we can to ensure that the model is 
correct, including frequent adjustments. He stated that he would like to discuss what to do with the model as 
additional information is collected to ensure it remains an accurate tool to aid in decision making and associated 
communications.



 

 
Page 3 January 18, 2023, RWMWD Minutes 
 Special Board Meeting 

 
Tina Carstens mentioned that the model will never be able to predict flood risk with full accuracy, but that it is 
important that we communicate the limitations of the model to those who will be affected by its use. She stated 
that scrutiny and attention will be used in drafting any communications pertaining to information provided by the 
model. 
 
Erin Anderson Wenz clarified that during the most recent round of communications regarding surveying properties, 
homeowners were contacted directly through door knocking and through informational materials left at their front 
doors. She stated that this was the most action that could reasonably be taken towards ensuring that these 
communications were received. Erin Anderson Wenz also stated that the models are updated as new information 
becomes available, and the nature of these updates depends on what new information is received.  
 
Tina Carstens stated that if we were going to tell a homeowner that their home was at risk, we would want to have 
all of the information available to communicate to the homeowner. She mentioned that part of that 
communication might be acknowledging that we do not have all of the information, and that we would like to 
conduct a property survey to collect additional information. She also noted that the cities should be the lead on 
these communications with the watershed providing technical assistance.  
 
A roll call vote was performed: 
 
Manager Skinner aye 
Manager Eisele  aye 
Manager Ward  aye 
President Swope  aye 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
6.  RESCHEDULE OF WETLAND BOARD WORKSHOP (13:19) 
Tina Carstens stated that President Swope requested that this meeting be reschedule to a date before the terms of 
Manager Ward and President Swope end on February 23, 2023. She suggested that the workshop be rescheduled 
looking at dates in mid to late February.  She will check with the two incoming board members as well as Manager 
Kramer to confirm their availability.  
 
7.   MANAGER COMMENTS AND NEXT MONTH’S MEETING (16:13) 
President Swope stated that Tina Carstens did a wonderful job taking over as one of the coordinators for the Metro 
MAWD meeting the previous evening. He stated that the meeting was interesting and very brief. He mentioned 
that there are a lot of topics under discussion due to all of the changes taking place within MAWD, Metro MAWD, 
and associated organizations. He also mentioned that the meeting involved discussion of how watersheds are 
approaching flood resiliency, and that be believes we are in great shape due to our ongoing work on the topic. He 
suggested the topic be added to the agenda, and brought up at the next Annual Meeting. 
 
Tina Carstens mentioned that she spoke with Brandon Barnes of Barr Engineering about putting together a 
presentation on the topic prior to the Minnesota Water Resources Conference in October 2023 which could be 
used for Metro MAWD and other opportunities, as well. 
 
Manager Ward stated that it would be beneficial to share the methodology for attacking such a large project as a 
part of that presentation. 
 
8. ADJOURN (19:22) 
Motion:  Manager Skinner moved, Manager Eisele seconded, to adjourn the meeting at 5:25 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  



RWMWD BUDGET STATUS REPORT
Administrative & Program Budget
Fiscal Year 2023
1/31/2023

Current Current
Account Original Budget Month Year‐to‐Date Budget Percent

Budget Category Budget Item Number Budget Transfers Expenses Expenses Balance of Budget
Manager Per diems 4355 $7,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         $7,000.00 0.00%

Manager expenses 4360 3,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         3,000.00 0.00%
Committees Committee/Bd Mtg. Exp. 4365 3,500.00 ‐                         234.50                     234.50                   3,265.50 6.70%

   Sub‐Total:  Managers/Committees: $13,500.00 $0.00 $234.50 $234.50 $13,265.50 1.74%

Employees Staff salary/taxes/benefits 4010 1,860,000.00 ‐                         136,073.15            136,073.15           1,723,926.85 7.32%
Employee expenses 4020 15,000.00 ‐                         79.67                       79.67                     14,920.33 0.53%
District training & education 4350 75,000.00 ‐                         474.16                     474.16                   74,525.84 0.63%

   Sub‐Total:  Employees: $1,950,000.00 $0.00 $136,626.98 $136,626.98 $1,813,373.02 7.01%

Administration/ GIS system maint. & equip. 4170 10,000.00 ‐                         1,257.25                 1,257.25               8,742.75 12.57%
   Office Data Base/GIS Maintenance 4171 20,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         20,000.00 0.00%
  Equipment maintenance 4305 2,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         2,000.00 0.00%
  Telephone 4310 2,000.00 ‐                         59.34                       59.34                     1,940.66 2.97%

Office supplies 4320 7,000.00 ‐                         465.71                     465.71                   6,534.29 6.65%
IT/Internet/Web Site/Software Lic. 4325 85,000.00 ‐                         6,955.25                 6,955.25               78,044.75 8.18%
Postage 4330 2,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         2,000.00 0.00%
Printing/copying 4335 5,000.00 ‐                         698.00                     698.00                   4,302.00 13.96%
Dues & publications 4338 15,000.00 ‐                         12,500.00               12,500.00             2,500.00 83.33%
Janitorial/Trash Service 4341 15,000.00 ‐                         594.00                     594.00                   14,406.00 3.96%
Utilities/Bldg.Contracts 4342 30,000.00 ‐                         441.47                     441.47                   29,558.53 1.47%
Bldg/Site Maintenance 4343 125,000.00 ‐                         7.58                         7.58                       124,992.42 0.01%
Miscellaneous 4390 5,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         5,000.00 0.00%
Insurance 4480 60,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         60,000.00 0.00%
Office equipment 4703 100,000.00 ‐                         150.00                     150.00                   99,850.00 0.15%
Vehicle lease, maintenance 4810‐40 20,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         20,000.00 0.00%

   Sub‐Total:  Administration/Office: $503,000.00 $0.00 $23,128.60 $23,128.60 $479,871.40 4.60%

Consultants/ Auditor/Accounting 4110 75,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         75,000.00 0.00%
Outside Services Engineering‐administration 4121 132,000.00 ‐                         3,515.00                 3,515.00               128,485.00 2.66%

Engineering‐permit I&E 4122 10,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         10,000.00 0.00%
Engineering‐eng. review 4123 70,000.00 ‐                         1,674.00                 1,674.00               68,326.00 2.39%
Engineering‐permit review 4124 59,000.00 ‐                         1,779.00                 1,779.00               57,221.00 3.02%
Project Feasibility Studies 4129 395,000.00 ‐                         13,201.50               13,201.50             381,798.50 3.34%
Attorney‐permits 4130 5,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         5,000.00 0.00%
Attorney‐general 4131 40,000.00 ‐                         2,190.00                 2,190.00               37,810.00 5.48%
Outside Consulting Services 4160 20,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         20,000.00 0.00%

   Sub‐Total:  Consultants/Outside Services: $806,000.00 $0.00 $22,359.50 $22,359.50 $783,640.50 2.77%

Programs Educational programming 4370 70,000.00 ‐                         90.39                       90.39                     69,909.61 0.13%
Communications & Marketing 4371 50,000.00 ‐                         89.50                       89.50                     49,910.50 0.18%
Events 4372 51,000.00 ‐                         640.78                     640.78                   50,359.22 1.26%
Water QM‐Engineering 4520‐30 240,000.00 ‐                         531.78 531.78                   239,468.22 0.22%
Project operations 4650 200,000.00 ‐                         717.47 717.47                   199,282.53 0.36%
SLMP/TMDL Studies 4661 142,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         142,000.00 0.00%
Natural Resources/Keller Creek 4670‐72 120,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         120,000.00 0.00%
Outside Prog.Support/Weed Mgmt. 44683 57,000.00 ‐                         10,000.00               10,000.00             47,000.00 17.54%
Research Projects 4695 155,000.00 ‐                         150.00                     150.00                   154,850.00 0.10%
Health and Safety Program 4697 4,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         4,000.00 0.00%

   Sub‐Total:  Programs: $1,089,000.00 $0.00 $12,219.92 $12,219.92 $1,076,780.08 1.12%

GENERAL FUND TOTAL $4,361,500.00 $0.00 $194,569.50 $194,569.50 $4,166,930.50 4.46%
CIP's CIP Project Repair & Maintenance 516 1,500,000.00 ‐                         7,299.70 7,299.70               1,492,700.30 0.49%

Targeted Retrofit Projects 518 1,500,000.00 ‐                         8,646.91 8,646.91               1,491,353.09 0.58%
Flood Risk Reduction Fund 520 5,200,000.00 ‐                         101.27 101.27                   5,199,898.73 0.00%
Debt Services‐96‐97 Beltline/MM/Battle Creek 526 395,404.00 ‐                         278,086.78            278,086.78           117,317.22 70.33%
Stewardship Grant Program Fund 529 1,128,000.00 ‐                         1,460.50 1,460.50               1,126,539.50 0.13%
Double Driveway Water Quality Optimization  537 675,000.00 ‐                         1,483.50 1,483.50               673,516.50 0.22%
Wetland Restoration Projects 540 500,000.00 ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         500,000.00 0.00%

CIP BUDGET TOTAL $10,898,404.00 ‐                         $297,078.66 $297,078.66 $10,601,325.34 2.73%
TOTAL BUDGET $15,259,904.00 $0.00 $491,648.16 $491,648.16 $14,768,255.84 3.22%

Current Fund Balances:
            Unaudited

Unaudited Beginning Fund Fund Year to date Current Month Year to Date Fund Balance
Fund: Balance @ 12/31/22 Transfers Revenue Expenses Expense @ 01/31/23
101 ‐ General Fund $2,278,902.63 ‐                         ‐                           194,569.50 194,569.50 2,084,333.13
516 ‐ CIP Project Repair & Maintenance 1,124,457.36         ‐                         ‐                           7,299.70 7,299.70 1,117,157.66
518 ‐ Targeted Retrofit Projects 148,393.49            ‐                         ‐                           8,646.91 8,646.91 139,746.58
520 ‐ Flood Damage Reduction Fund 5,098,898.71         ‐                         ‐                           101.27 101.27 5,098,797.44
526 ‐ Debt Services‐96‐97 Beltline/MM/Beltline‐Battle Creek Tunnel Repair 551,908.60            ‐                         ‐                           278,086.78           278,086.78 273,821.82
529 ‐ Stewardship Grant Program Fund 564,229.71            ‐                         ‐                           1,460.50 1,460.50 562,769.21
536 ‐ Stormwater Impact Fund 358,950.00            ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           358,950.00
537 ‐ Double Driveway Water Quality Optimization Implementation ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           1,483.50 1,483.50 (1,483.50)
540 ‐ Wetland Restoration Projects 498,036.00            ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           498,036.00
580 ‐ Contingency Fund 1,465,487.00         ‐                         ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           1,465,487.00
Total District Fund Balance $12,089,263.50 $0.00 ‐$                         491,648.16$        $491,648.16 $11,597,615.34



RWMWD BUDGET STATUS REPORT
Administrative & Program Budget
Fiscal Year 2022
12/31/2022 ‐ UPDATED 1/23/23

Current Current
Account Original Budget Month Year‐to‐Date Budget Percent

Budget Category Budget Item Number Budget Transfers Expenses Expenses Balance of Budget
Manager Per diems 4355 $8,500.00 ‐                      2,125.00               3,534.10             $4,965.90 41.58%

Manager expenses 4360 4,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       4,000.00 0.00%
Committees Committee/Bd Mtg. Exp. 4365 3,500.00 ‐                      321.60                  4,385.07             (885.07) 125.29%

   Sub‐Total:  Managers/Committees: $16,000.00 $0.00 $2,446.60 $7,919.17 $8,080.83 49.49%

Employees Staff salary/taxes/benefits 4010 1,660,000.00 ‐                      134,969.30           1,632,871.89      27,128.11 98.37%
Employee expenses 4020 15,000.00 ‐                      623.06                  7,294.79             7,705.21 48.63%
District training & education 4350 75,000.00 ‐                      4,919.38               33,266.99           41,733.01 44.36%

   Sub‐Total:  Employees: $1,750,000.00 $0.00 $140,511.74 $1,673,433.67 $76,566.33 95.62%

Administration/ GIS system maint. & equip. 4170 10,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          3,134.02             6,865.98 31.34%
   Office Data Base/GIS Maintenance 4171 40,000.00 ‐                      2,380.00               2,478.94             37,521.06 6.20%
  Equipment maintenance 4305 3,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          152.69                 2,847.31 5.09%
  Telephone 4310 4,000.00 ‐                      59.34                     712.08                 3,287.92 17.80%

Office supplies 4320 7,000.00 ‐                      776.60                  6,970.89             29.11 99.58%
IT/Internet/Web Site/Software Lic. 4325 75,000.00 ‐                      6,536.64               77,280.44           (2,280.44) 103.04%
Postage 4330 3,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          1,106.17             1,893.83 36.87%
Printing/copying 4335 5,000.00 ‐                      294.00                  4,548.40             451.60 90.97%
Dues & publications 4338 11,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          11,188.94           (188.94) 101.72%
Janitorial/Trash Service 4341 15,000.00 ‐                      2,000.57               11,272.11           3,727.89 75.15%
Utilities/Bldg.Contracts 4342 30,000.00 ‐                      333.90                  9,463.95             20,536.05 31.55%
Bldg/Site Maintenance 4343 150,000.00 ‐                      1,089.76               100,677.26         49,322.74 67.12%
Miscellaneous 4390 5,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       5,000.00 0.00%
Insurance 4480 55,000.00 ‐                      (2,167.04)              50,988.96           4,011.04 92.71%
Office equipment 4703 150,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          15,556.41           134,443.59 10.37%
Vehicle lease, maintenance 4810‐40 20,000.00 ‐                      801.26                  9,452.93             10,547.07 47.26%

   Sub‐Total:  Administration/Office: $583,000.00 $0.00 $12,105.03 $304,984.19 $278,015.81 52.31%

Consultants/ Auditor/Accounting 4110 70,000.00 ‐                      3,316.85               56,435.68           13,564.32 80.62%
Outside Services Engineering‐administration 4121 125,000.00 ‐                      10,529.00             82,720.00           42,280.00 66.18%

Engineering‐permit I&E 4122 10,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          4,269.50             5,730.50 42.70%
Engineering‐eng. review 4123 60,000.00 ‐                      414.00                  62,564.50           (2,564.50) 104.27%
Engineering‐permit review 4124 55,000.00 ‐                      5,661.50               53,117.50           1,882.50 96.58%
Project Feasibility Studies 4129 410,000.00 ‐                      27,229.75             327,412.88         82,587.12 79.86%
Attorney‐permits 4130 10,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       10,000.00 0.00%
Attorney‐general 4131 40,000.00 ‐                      3,285.00               21,904.70           18,095.30 54.76%
Outside Consulting Services 4160 20,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       20,000.00 0.00%

   Sub‐Total:  Consultants/Outside Services: $800,000.00 $0.00 $50,436.10 $608,424.76 $191,575.24 76.05%

Programs Educational programming 4370 75,000.00 ‐                      3,033.12               44,756.26           30,243.74 59.68%
Communications & Marketing 4371 50,000.00 ‐                      1,137.45               31,822.23           18,177.77 63.64%
Events 4372 46,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          51,469.59           (5,469.59) 111.89%
Water QM‐Engineering 4520‐30 180,000.00 ‐                      5,305.02 221,366.19         (41,366.19) 122.98%
Project operations 4650 200,000.00 ‐                      656.35 138,924.88         61,075.12 69.46%
SLMP/TMDL Studies 4661 125,000.00 ‐                      1,832.00               43,819.50           81,180.50 35.06%
Natural Resources/Keller Creek 4670‐72 120,000.00 ‐                      8,304.81               113,253.42         6,746.58 94.38%
Outside Prog.Support/Weed Mgmt. 44683 57,000.00 ‐                      3,369.33               24,107.99           32,892.01 42.29%
Research Projects 4695 225,000.00 ‐                      62,745.00             156,203.69         68,796.31 69.42%
Health and Safety Program 4697 3,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          3,663.18             (663.18) 122.11%

   Sub‐Total:  Programs: $1,081,000.00 $0.00 $86,383.08 $829,386.93 $251,613.07 76.72%

GENERAL FUND TOTAL $4,230,000.00 $0.00 $291,882.55 $3,424,148.72 $805,851.28 80.95%
CIP's CIP Project Repair & Maintenance 516 1,500,000.00 ‐                      68,139.72 1,196,228.03      303,771.97 79.75%

Targeted Retrofit Projects 518 1,500,000.00 ‐                      36,428.63 831,346.51         668,653.49 55.42%
Flood Risk Reduction Fund 520 5,200,000.00 ‐                      604.52 27,752.65           5,172,247.35 0.53%
Debt Services‐96‐97 Beltline/MM/Battle Creek 526 394,710.00 ‐                      ‐                          393,040.40         1,669.60 99.58%
Stewardship Grant Program Fund 529 1,000,000.00 ‐                      171,990.17 636,473.99         363,526.01 63.65%
Wetland Restoration Projects 540 500,000.00 ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       500,000.00 0.00%

CIP BUDGET TOTAL $10,094,710.00 ‐                      $277,163.04 $3,084,841.58 $7,009,868.42 30.56%
TOTAL BUDGET $14,324,710.00 $0.00 $569,045.59 $6,508,990.30 $7,815,719.70 45.44%

Current Fund Balances:
            Unaudited
Beginning Fund Fund Year to date Current Month Year to Date Fund Balance

Fund: Balance @ 12/31/21 Transfers Revenue Expenses Expense @ 12/31/22
101 ‐ General Fund $2,382,780.20 ‐                      3,320,271.15        291,882.55 3,424,148.72 2,278,902.63
516 ‐ CIP Project Repair & Maintenance 162,659.00           ‐                      2,158,026.39        68,139.72 1,196,228.03 1,124,457.36
518 ‐ Targeted Retrofit Projects 948,555.00           ‐                      31,185.00             36,428.63 831,346.51 148,393.49
520 ‐ Flood Damage Reduction Fund 3,415,744.00        ‐                      1,710,907.36        604.52 27,752.65 5,098,898.71
526 ‐ Debt Services‐96‐97 Beltline/MM/Beltline‐Battle Creek Tunnel Repair 944,949.00           ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       393,040.40 551,908.60
529 ‐ Stewardship Grant Program Fund 854,750.00           ‐                      345,953.70           171,990.17 636,473.99 564,229.71
536 ‐ Stormwater Impact Fund 309,837.00           ‐                      49,113.00             ‐                       ‐                          358,950.00
540 ‐ Wetland Restoration Projects 498,036.00           ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          498,036.00
580 ‐ Contingency Fund 1,465,487.00        ‐                      ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          1,465,487.00
Total District Fund Balance $10,982,797.20 $0.00 7,615,456.60$     569,045.59$       $6,508,990.30 $12,089,263.50



 Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.
 Check Register

 For the Period From Jan 1, 2023 to Jan 31, 2023

1/25/2023 at 4:50 PM Page: 1

Check # Date Payee ID Invoice # Payee Description Amount

EFT 01/01/23 met008 Jan 2023 MetLife-Group Benefits Employee Benefits $1,824.16
EFT 01/10/23 hea002 Feb 2023 HealthPartners Employee Benefits 14,921.44
EFT 01/10/23 nsp002 Jan 2023 Xcel Energy 1010-101-000 33.77

73562 01/11/23 aws001 S1335957-010123 AWS Service Center Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 328.97
73563 01/11/23 bur002 23-02 Tom Burns Consulting, LLC Data Base/GIS Maintenance 2,380.00
73564 01/11/23 dil001 Simba Carl DiLaura Office Supplies 200.00
73565 01/11/23 han008 2119 Hanna Enterprises, LLC Janitorial/Trash Service 1,100.00
73566 01/11/23 hom001 1091823 Home Depot Credit Services Water QM/Natural Resources 110.64
73567 01/11/23 maw002 2023 Dues MAWD Dues & Publications 12,500.00
73568 01/11/23 met004 INV2186630 Metro Sales, Inc. Printing Expense 404.00
73569 01/11/23 min008 36184 Minnesota Native Landscapes, Inc. Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 5,200.00
73570 01/11/23 nor016 Debt Services-2/1/23 Northland Trust Services, Inc. Debt Services-Beltline 273,931.25
73571 01/11/23 pac001 22100398337 Pace Analytical Services, Inc. Water QM Staff 2,527.13
73572 01/11/23 pre003 319183962 Premium Waters, Inc. Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 31.00
73573 01/11/23 ram002 PRK-002131 Ramsey County Stewardship Grant Fund 12,356.25
73574 01/11/23 sai001 3821 Saint Paul Media Communications & Marketing 50.00
73575 01/11/23 tes001 S368728-IN The Tessman Company Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 367.20
73576 01/11/23 usb005 490921137 US Bank Equipment Finance Printing Expense 294.00
73577 01/11/23 vik001 32567854 Viking Industrial Center Water QM Staff 99.00
73578 01/24/23 ahl001 Jul-Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Paige Ahlborg Employee Reimbursement 241.69
73579 01/24/23 att002 2875663401X12252022 AT & T Mobility - ROC Project Operations 332.68
73580 01/24/23 bar001 Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Barr Engineering December/January Engineering 74,801.74
73581 01/24/23 bar002 Jul-Nov 2022 Bill Bartodziej Employee Reimbursement 167.57
73582 01/24/23 ben002 113354 Benefit  Extras, Inc. Employee Benefits 765.00
73583 01/24/23 blo001 Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Simba Blood Employee Reimbursement 298.25
73584 01/24/23 cad001 19158401 Zayo Group, LLC Water QM Staff 139.28
73585 01/24/23 car003 2022 Tina Carstens Employee Reimbursement 1,331.27
73586 01/24/23 car007 RWMWD_9_30_22 Carp Solutions, LLC Natural Resources Project 7,500.00
73587 01/24/23 cit006 22-29 CS City of Woodbury Stewardship Grant Fund 17,716.25
73588 01/24/23 cit010 13313 City of White Bear Lake GIS System Maint. & Equipment 1,257.25
73589 01/24/23 cit011 231530 City of Roseville IT/Website/Software 16.00
73590 01/24/23 com004 1/16/23 Comcast Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 81.50
73591 01/24/23 don001 Jul-Dec 2022  Matthew Doneux Employee Reimbursement 33.39
73592 01/24/23 fit002 Jan 2023 Mary Fitzgerald Employee Reimbursement 28.47
73593 01/24/23 gal001 Jan 2023 Galowitz Olson, PLLC January Legal Expense 2,740.00
73594 01/24/23 gig001 21-36 CS Michele Giglio Stewardship Grant Fund 188.75
73595 01/24/23 ham002 2023 Membership Hamline University Outside Program Support 10,000.00
73596 01/24/23 inn002 IN4054923 Innovative Office Solutions LLC Office Supplies 78.31
73597 01/24/23 int001 W22120478 Office of MN, IT Services Telephone Expense 59.34
73598 01/24/23 int003 195002 Intereum, Inc. Office Equipment 150.00
73599 01/24/23 joh006 18-09 MTN Skip Johnson Stewardship Grant Fund 811.37
73600 01/24/23 kor001 2022 Eric Korte Employee Reimbursement 244.73
73601 01/24/23 kub001 Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Kyle W. Kubitza Employee Reimbursement 80.92
73602 01/24/23 mag004 Jul-Dec 2022 Carrie Magnuson Employee Reimbursement 351.49
73603 01/24/23 mel001 Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Michelle L. Melser Employee Reimbursement 143.05
73604 01/24/23 met012 1040 Metro-INET IT/Website/Software 6,859.00
73605 01/24/23 min010 Feb 2023 MN Public Facilities Authority Debt Services-Beltline 3,720.53
73606 01/24/23 ncp001 Jan 2023 NCPERS Group Life Ins. Employee Benefits 16.00
73607 01/24/23 nor011 7441 Northland Securities, Inc. Debt Services-Beltline 435.00
73608 01/24/23 nsp001 812168240 Xcel Energy Project Operations 98.61
73609 01/24/23 pas002 Jul-Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Carol Passi Employee Reimbursement 136.87
73610 01/24/23 qwe001 Jan 2023 CenturyLink Project Operations 312.69
73611 01/24/23 red002 Dec 2022   Redpath & Company December Accounting Services 1,646.51
73612 01/24/23 sim001 Jul-Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Emily Simmons Employee Reimbursement 198.96
73613 01/24/23 sod001 Jul-Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Nicole Soderholm Employee Reimbursement 47.16
73614 01/24/23 suk001 22-16 MTN Sheryl Sukolsky Stewardship Grant Fund 269.97
73615 01/24/23 tim002 M27918 Timesaver Off-Site Secretarial, Inc. Committee/Board Meeting Expense 234.50
73616 01/24/23 tro002 23-1 Cathy Troendle Educational Program 70.00
73617 01/24/23 usb002 Jan 2023 U.S. Bank Dec/Jan Credit Card Expense 1,759.17
73618 01/24/23 van001 Feb 2023 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of Minnesota Janitorial/Trash Service 594.00
73619 01/24/23 voy001 8692934232252 US Bank Voyager Fleet Sys. Vehcile Fuel 248.65
73620 01/24/23 was002 5911/5920/5887 Washington Conservation District Outside Program/Stewardship 4,034.08

Total $468,898.81



 Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.
 Check Register

 For the Period From Jan 1, 2023 to Jan 31, 2023

1/25/2023 at 4:50 PM Page: 2

Check # Date Payee ID Invoice # Payee Description Amount

EFT 01/06/23 myp001 01/06/23 January 6th Payroll 4110-101-000 68.10
EFT 01/20/23 myp001 01/20/23 January 20th Payroll 4110-101-000 255.10

Dir.Dep. 01/06/23 --- Payroll Expense-Net January 6th Payroll 4010-101-000 29,115.80
EFT 01/06/23 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. January 6th Federal Withholding 2001-101-000 10,491.17
EFT 01/06/23 mnd001 MN Revenue January 6th State Withholding 2003-101-000 1,918.74
EFT 01/06/23 per001 PERA January 6th PERA 2011-101-000 6,520.73
EFT 01/06/23 emp002 Empower Retirement Employee Def. Comp. Contributions 2016-101-000 2,803.00
EFT 01/06/23 emp002 Empower Retirement Employee IRA Contributions 2018-101-000 857.00

Dir.Dep. 01/20/23 --- Payroll Expense-Net January 20th Payroll 4010-101-000 36,436.78
EFT 01/20/23 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. January 20th Federal Withholding 2001-101-000 14,757.49
EFT 01/20/23 mnd001 MN Revenue January 20th State Withholding 2003-101-000 2,755.53
EFT 01/20/23 per001 PERA January 20th PERA 2011-101-000 6,299.15
EFT 01/20/23 emp002 Empower Retirement Employee Def. Comp. Contributions 2016-101-000 2,803.00
EFT 01/20/23 emp002 Empower Retirement Employee IRA Contributions 2018-101-000 857.00

Payroll/Benefits: $115,938.59

Total Accounts Payable/Payroll/Benefits: $584,837.40



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From January 1, 2023 - January 31, 2023

Date Check # Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount

01/01/23 EFT met008 MetLife-Group Benefits 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General $1,824.16

01/10/23 EFT hea002 HealthPartners 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 14,921.44

01/10/23 EFT nsp002 Xcel Energy 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 33.77

01/11/23 73562 aws001 AWS Service Center 4342-101-000 Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 328.97

01/11/23 73563 bur002 Tom Burn's Consulting, LLC 4171-101-000 Data Base/GIS Maintenance 2,380.00 2022

01/11/23 73564 dil001 Carl DiLaura 4320-101-000 Office Supplies 200.00

01/11/23 73565 han008 Hanna Enterprises, LLC 4341-101-000 Janitorial/Trash Service 1,100.00 2022

01/11/23 73566 hom001 Home Depot Credit Services 110.64

4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General  33.74 2022

4670-101-000 Natural Resources Project-General 76.90 2022

01/11/23 73567 maw002 MAWD 4338-101-000 Dues & Publications-General 12,500.00

01/11/23 73568 met004 Metro Sales, Inc. 4335-101-000 Printing-General 404.00

01/11/23 73569 min008 Minnesota Native Landscapes, Inc. 4630-516-000 Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 5,200.00 2022

01/11/23 73570 nor016 Northland Trust Services, Inc. 4708-526-000 Debt Services-Beltline Tunnel 273,931.25

01/11/23 73571 pac001 Pace Analytical Services, Inc. 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 2,527.13 2022

01/11/23 73572 pre003 Premium Waters, Inc. 4342-101-000 Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 31.00

01/11/23 73573 ram002 Ramsey County 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 12,356.25 2022

01/11/23 73574 sai001 Saint Paul Media 4371-101-000 Communications & Marketing 50.00

01/11/23 73575 tes001 The Tessman Company 4630-516-000 Construction Imp.-Maint. & Repair 367.20

01/11/23 73576 usb005 US Bank Equipment Finance 4335-101-000 Printing-General 294.00

01/11/23 73577 k001 Viking Industrial Center 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 99.00 2022

01/24/23 73578 ahl001 Paige Ahlborg   241.69

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General  23.92 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 26.86

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 126.55

4372-101-000 Events 64.36

01/24/23 73579 att002 AT & T Mobility - ROC 4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 332.68

01/24/23 73580 bar001 Barr Engineering 74,801.74

4121-101-000 Engineering Admin-General Fund 2,791.00 2022

4123-101-000 Engineering-Review 414.00 2022

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,778.00 2022

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 807.50 2022

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 235.00 2022

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 235.00 2022

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,240.00 2022

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,082.00 2022

4520-101-000 Engineering-WQM 546.88 2022

4124-101-000 Engineering-Permit Review 965.50 2022

4661-101-000 SLMP/TMDL Studies 72.00 2022

4661-101-000 SLMP/TMDL Studies 1,080.00 2022

4695-101-000 Research Projects-General 1,244.00 2022

4695-101-000 Research Projects-General 4,863.00 2022

4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 75.00 2022

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 2,812.50 2022

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 757.00 2022

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 685.00 2022

4682-529-000 Engineering-Stewardship Grant Program 1,508.50 2022

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 510.00 2022

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 3,849.50 2022

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 1,363.50 2022

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 7,133.95 2022



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From January 1, 2023 - January 31, 2023

Date Check # Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount

4121-101-000 Engineering Admin-General Fund 3,515.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 512.50

4123-101-000 Engineering-Review 1,674.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 820.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,621.50

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 67.50

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 6,783.00

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,750.50

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 297.50

4129-101-000 Project Feasability-General 1,416.50

4520-101-000 Engineering-WQM 242.50

4520-101-000 Engineering-WQM 150.00

4124-101-000 Engineering-Permit Review 1,779.00

4695-101-000 Research Projects-General 150.00

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 1,787.50

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 1,497.00

4682-529-000 Engineering-Stewardship Grant Program 1,460.50

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 737.50

4128-518-000 Engineering-Targeted Retrofit 4,624.91

4128-537-000 Engineering-Double Driveway 1,483.50

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 1,642.50

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair 4,740.00

4128-516-000 Engineering-Maint. & Repair

01/24/23 73581 bar002 Bill Bartodziej 167.57

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 131.97 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 35.60 2022

01/24/23 73582 benoo2 Benefit Extras, Inc. 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 765.00

01/24/23 73583 blo001 Simba Blood 298.25

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 169.05

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 24.57

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 16.01 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 88.62 2022

01/24/23 73584 cad001 Zayo Group, LLC 4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 139.28

01/24/23 73585 car003 Tina Carstens 1,331.27

 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 480.00 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 79.38 2022

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 771.89 2022

01/24/23 73586 car007 Carp Solutions, LLC 4670-101-000 Natural Resources Project-General 7,500.00 2022

01/24/23 73587 cit006 City of Woodbury 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 17,716.25 2022

01/24/23 73588 cit010 City of White Bear Lake 4170-101-000 GIS System Maint. & Equipment 1,257.25

01/24/23 73589 cit011 City of Roseville 4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 16.00 2022

01/24/23 73590 com004 Comcast 4342-101-000 Utilities/Bldg. Contracts 81.50

01/24/23 73591 don001 Matthew Doneux 33.39

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General  14.12 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 19.27 2022

01/24/23 73592 fit002 Mary Fitzgerald 28.47

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General  6.65 2022

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 21.82

01/24/23 73593 gal001 Galowitz Olson, PLLC 2,740.00

4131-101-000 Attorney General-General  2,190.00

4131-516-000 Attorney General-Maint. & Repair 550.00



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From January 1, 2023 - January 31, 2023

Date Check # Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount

01/24/23 73594 gig001 Michele Giglio 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 188.75 2022

01/24/23 73595 ham002 Hamline University 4683-101-000 Outside Program Support 10,000.00

01/24/23 73596 inn002 Innovative Office Solutions LLC 4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 78.31

01/24/23 73597 int001 Office of MN, IT Services 4310-101-000 Telephone-General 59.34

01/24/23 73598 int003 Intereum, Inc. 4703-101-000 Office Equipment-General 150.00

01/24/23 73599 joh006 Skip Johnson 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 811.37 2022

01/24/23 73600 kor001 Eric Korte 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 244.73                  2022

01/24/23 73601 kub001 Kyle W. Kubitza 80.92

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General  40.00 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 0.92 2022

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 40.00

01/24/23 73602 mag004 Carrie Magnuson 351.49

4020-101-000 Employee Benefits-General  9.50 2022

4365-101-000 Committee/Board Meeting Exp. 21.60 2022

4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 25.00 2022

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 290.00 2022

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 5.39 2022

01/24/23 73603 mel001 Michelle Melser 143.05

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 25.45 2022

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 117.60

01/24/23 73604 met012 Metro-INET 4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 6,859.00

01/24/23 73605 min010 MN Public Facilities Authority 4700-526-000 Debt Services-Beltline Tunnel 3,720.53

01/24/23 73606 ncp001 NCPERS Group Life Insurance 4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 16.00

01/24/23 73607 nor011 Northland Trust Services, Inc. 4708-526-000 Debt Services-Beltline Tunnel 435.00

01/24/23 73608 nsp001 Xcel Energy 4650-520-000 Project Operations-General 98.61 2022

01/24/23 73609 pas002 Carol Passi 136.87

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General  51.32 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 25.16

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 40.00

4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 20.39

01/24/23 73610 qwe001 CenturyLink 4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 312.69

01/24/23 73611 red002 Redpath & Company, Ltd. 4110-101-000 Auditor/Accounting 1,646.51 2022

01/24/23 73612 sim001 Emily Simmons 198.96

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General  15.88 2022

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 140.00 2022

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General 3.08

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 40.00

01/24/23 73613 sod001 Nicole Soderholm 47.16

4020-101-000 Employee Expenses-General  7.16 2022

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 40.00

01/24/23 73614 suk001 Sheryl Sukolsky 4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 269.97 2022

01/24/23 73615 tim002 Timesaver Off-Site Secretarial, Inc. 4365-101-000 Committee/Board Meeting Expense 234.50

01/24/23 73616 tro002 Cathy Troendle 4370-101-000 Educational Program-General 70.00



Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed Dist.

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From January 1, 2023 - January 31, 2023

Date Check # Vendor ID Name Account ID Account Description Amount

01/24/23 73617 usb002 U.S. Bank  1,759.17

 4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 118.44

4372-101-000 Events 70.68

4325-101-000 IT/Website/Software 96.25

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 124.16

4650-101-000 Project Operations-General 72.10

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 97.00 2022

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 80.22 2022

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 46.18 2022

4320-101-000 Office Suppleis-General 5.99 2022

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 20.58 2022

4343-101-000 Bldg/Site Maintenance 7.58

4320-101-000 Office Supplies-General 68.96

4350-101-000 Training & Education-General 350.00

4372-101-000 Events 505.74

4371-101-000 Communications & Marketing 39.50

4040-101-000 Employee Benefits-General 53.85

4320-101-000 Office Suppleis-General 1.94 2022

01/23/23 73618 van001 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of Minnesota 4341-101-000 Janitorial/Trash Service 594.00

01/23/23 73619 voy001 US Bank Voyager Fleet Sys. 4830-101-000 Vehicle Fuel-General 248.65 2022

01/23/23 73620 was002 Washington Conservation District 4,034.08

4683-101-000 Outside Program Support 3,369.33 2022

4682-529-000 Stewardship Grant Fund 544.00 2022

4530-101-000 Water QM Staff-General 120.75 2022

  

Accounts Payable Total:  $468,898.81

 

EFT 01/06/23 myp001 Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 January 6th Payroll 68.10

EFT 01/20/23 myp001 Payroll Fees 4110-101-000 January 20th Payroll 255.10

Dir.Dep. 01/06/23 --- Payroll Expense-Net 4010-101-000 January 6th Payroll 29,115.80

EFT 01/06/23 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. 2001-101-000 January 6th Federal Withholding 10,491.17

EFT 01/06/23 mnd001 MN Revenue 2003-101-000 January 6th State Withholding 1,918.74

EFT 01/06/23 per001 PERA 2011-101-000 January 6th PERA 6,520.73

EFT 01/06/23 emp002 Empower Retirement 2016-101-000 Employee Def. Comp. Contributions 2,803.00

EFT 01/06/23 emp002 Empower Retirement 2018-101-000 Employee IRA Contributions 857.00

Dir.Dep. 01/20/23 --- Payroll Expense-Net 4010-101-000 January 20th Payroll 36,436.78

EFT 01/20/23 int002 Internal Rev.Serv. 2001-101-000 January 20th Federal Withholding 14,757.49

EFT 01/20/23 mnd001 MN Revenue 2003-101-000 January 20th State Withholding 2,755.53

EFT 01/20/23 per001 PERA 2011-101-000 January 20th PERA 6,299.15

EFT 01/20/23 emp002 Empower Retirement 2016-101-000 Employee Def. Comp. Contributions 2,803.00

EFT 01/20/23 emp002 Empower Retirement 2018-101-000 Employee IRA Contributions 857.00

Payroll/Benefits $115,938.59

  

 

TOTAL:  $584,837.40



Total Engineering Budget
(2022)

Total Fees to Date
(2022)

Budget Balance
(2022) Fees During Period District Accounting Code Plan Implementation

Task Number

Engineering Administration
General Engineering Administration $80,000.00 $82,720.00 -$2,720.00 $2,791.00 4121-101 DW-13

RWMWD Health and Safety/ERTK Program $2,000.00 $540.00 $1,460.00 $0.00 4697-101 DW-13

Educational Program/Educational Forum Assistance $20,000.00 $2,847.50 $17,152.50 $0.00 4129-101 DW-11

Topical Workshop, Education, and Planning $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-13

Engineering Review
Engineering Review $60,000.00 $62,564.50 -$2,564.50 $414.00 4123-101 DW-13

Project Feasibility Studies
Interim emergency response plan funds for top priority District  flooding 

areas 
$30,000.00 $38,739.00 -$8,739.00 $1,778.00 4129-101 DW-19

Groundwater/Surface Water Next Steps $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-10, DW-16

Hillcrest Golf Course $20,000.00 $72.00 $19,928.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-6

Kohlman Creek flood damage reduction feasibility study
$75,000.00 $6,503.50 $68,496.50 $0.00 4129-101 DW-9, KC-2, BELT-3

Kohlman Creek- Wakefield Lake Diversion Planning and Design
$111,600.00 $71,830.13 $86,010.00 $807.50 4129-101 DW-9, KC-2, BELT-3

Improvements to County Ditch 17
$20,000.00 $34,770.50 -$14,770.50 $235.00 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3

Improvements to Phalen Village
$20,000.00 $23,494.00 -$3,494.00 $235.00 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3

Ames Lake Technical Assisstance and Project Planning with St. Paul

$25,000.00 $18,482.00 $6,518.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3

694/494/94 WQ treatment feasibility study $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 4129-101 BCL-3

Double Driveway Optimization Study $25,000.00 $13,705.25 $11,294.75 $1,240.00 4129-101 FC-2

Carver Pond Improvements Study (Fish Creek Subwatershed) $25,000.00 $19,603.53 $5,396.47 $0.00 4129-101 FC-2

Evaluate compliance with South Metro Mississippi River TSS TMDL $30,000.00 $2,496.00 $27,504.00 $0.00 4129-101 MR-2

Owasso Basin area/North Star Estates improvements (with City of Little 

Canada)
$50,000.00 $90,145.47 -$40,145.47 $1,082.00 4129-101 GC-3

Wetland Restoration Workshop, Education, and Planning $5,000.00 $2,969.00 $2,031.00 $0.00 4129-101 DW-8

Contingency* $45,000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 $0.00 4129-101

GIS Maintenance
GIS Maintenance $5,000.00 $1,047.00 $3,953.00 $0.00 4170-101 DW-13

Monitoring Water Quality/Project Monitoring
Lake Water Quality Monitoring (Misc QA/QC) $10,000.00 $34.50 $9,965.50 $0.00 4520-101 DW-2

Annual WQ Report Assistance $10,000.00 $13,513.00 -$3,513.00 $0.00 4520-101 DW-2

Special Project BMP Monitoring $25,000.00 $11,270.31 $13,729.69 $546.88 4520-101 DW-12

Grass Lake Berm Wetland Monitoring $10,000.00 $9,589.33 $410.67 $0.00 4520-101 DW-5

Permit Processing, Inspection and Enforcement
Permit Application Inspection and Enforcement $10,000.00 $4,269.50 $5,730.50 $0.00 4122-101 DW-7

Permit Application Review $55,000.00 $53,117.50 $1,882.50 $965.50 4124-101 DW-7

Lake Studies/TMDL Reports
2022 Grant Applications $40,000.00 $2,005.50 $37,994.50 $0.00 4661-101 DW-13

WMP Updates - Including Implementation Plan Updates if needed
$20,000.00 $7,365.00 $12,635.00 $0.00 4661-101 DW-13

Prioritization of water quality projects from subwatershed feasibility studies
$5,000.00 $1,029.00 $3,971.00 $72.00 4661-101 DW-13

Cost/Benefit Analysis of Treatment Options for Bennett and Wakefield in 

2020 Internal Load Analysis 
$35,000.00 $31,350.00 $3,650.00 $1,080.00 4661-101 WL-3, BeL-3

Phalen Chain of Lakes Changes in Water Quality $2,500.00 $2,070.00 $430.00 $0.00 4661-101 DW-2, DW-12

Contingency for Lake Studies $22,500.00 $0.00 $22,500.00 $0.00 4661-101

Research Projects
New Technology Mini Case Studies (average 6 per year) $12,000.00 $4,174.50 $7,825.50 $0.00 4695-101 DW-12

Kohlman Permeable Weir Test System - Implement Monitoring Plan $50,000.00 $25,678.13 $24,321.87 $1,244.00 4695-101 DW-12

Shallow Lake Aeration Study $90,000.00 $76,351.06 $13,648.94 $4,863.00 4695-101 DW-12

Project Operations
2022 Tanners Alum Facility Monitoring $15,000.00 $19,962.27 -$4,962.27 $75.00 4650-101 TaL-3

Capital Improvements
North St. Paul Target $160,000.00 $158,012.30 $1,987.70 $0.00 4128-518 DW-6

East St Paul and North St. Paul Target Retrofit Projects $5,000.00 $4,607.00 $393.00 $0.00 4128-518 DW-6

Woodbury Target Stormwater Retrofit $46,900.00 $18,133.50 $28,766.50 $2,812.50 4128-518 DW-6

Ryan Drive-Keller Parkway Conveyance $194,000.00 $226,570.20 -$32,570.20 $0.00 4128-520 DW-9. GC-3

2022 Targeted Retrofit Projects $191,000.00 $184,847.54 $6,152.46 $757.00 4128-518 DW-6

Pioneer Park Stormwater Reuse $151,200.00 $7,156.13 $144,043.87 $685.00 4128-518 DW-6

Stewardship Grant Program: Gen'l BMP Design Assistance and Review 

(cases where Dist is approached by landowner, or landowner is not 

commercial, school, church).

$75,000.00 $66,611.81 $8,388.19 $1,508.50 4682-529 DW-6

Kohlman Creek Storage and Detention $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $0.00 4128-520 KC-2

Wetland Restoration $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 4128-529 DW-8

South Owasso Boulevard East WQ Pond $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 4128-520 GC-3

West Industrial Park Berm and associated improvements $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 4128-520 GC-3

Lake Emily Subwatershed Regional BMP $160,000.00 $64,393.26 $95,606.74 $510.00 4128-518 LE-3

CIP Project Repair & Maintenance
Routine CIP Inspection and Unplanned Maintenance Identification $125,000.00 $129,814.21 -$4,814.21 $3,849.50 4128-516 DW-5

Beltline 5-year Inspection $70,000.00 $72,189.45 -$2,189.45 $1,363.50 4128-516 BELT-2

District Inspection Standardization $34,200.00 $35,926.26 -$1,726.26 $0.00 4128-516 DW-5

2022 CIP Maintenance and Repairs $150,000.00 $94,789.92 $55,210.08 $0.00 4128-516 DW-5

2023 CIP Maintenance and Repairs (planning, bidding, and project setup) $166,800.00 $36,133.41 $130,666.59 $7,133.95 4128-516 DW-5

$36,048.83

                                       Barr declares under the penalties of Law that this Account,

                                       Claim, or Demand is just and that no part has been paid.

Bradley J. Lindaman,  Vice President

Summary of Professional Engineering Services During the Period  
                 December 17, 2022 through December 31, 2022



Total Engineering Budget
(2023)

Total Fees to Date
(2023)

Budget Balance
(2023) Fees During Period District Accounting Code Plan Implementation

Task Number

Engineering Administration
General Engineering Administration $87,000.00 $3,515.00 $83,485.00 $3,515.00 4121-101 DW-13

RWMWD Health and Safety/ERTK Program $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 4697-101 DW-13

Educational Program/Educational Forum Assistance $20,000.00 $512.50 $19,487.50 $512.50 4129-101 DW-11

Topical Workshop, Education, and Planning $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 4129-101 DW-13

Engineering Review
Engineering Review $70,000.00 $1,674.00 $68,326.00 $1,674.00 4123-101 DW-13

Project Feasibility Studies
Emergency Response Plans (communication with cities from 2021 and 2022 
efforts) $15,000.00 $820.00 $14,180.00 $820.00 4129-101 DW-19

Kohlman Creek flood damage reduction feasibility study $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 4129-101 DW-9, KC-2, BELT-3

Kohlman Creek- Wakefield Lake Diversion Planning and Design $111,600.00 $1,621.50 $109,978.50 $1,621.50 4129-101 DW-9, KC-2, BELT-3

Ames Lake Technical Assisstance and Project Planning with St. Paul $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 4129-101 DW-9, BELT-3

Resiliency Study for non-Beltline tributary areas (pre-planning study and 
evaluation of existing data) $150,000.00 $67.50 $149,932.50 $67.50 4128-520

Evaluate compliance with South Metro Mississippi River TSS TMDL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 4129-101 MR-2

Owasso Basin area/North Star Estates improvements (with City of Little 
Canada) $30,000.00 $6,783.00 $23,217.00 $6,783.00 4129-101 GC-3

Street Sweeping $20,000.00 $1,750.50 $18,249.50 $1,750.50 4129-101

Retrofit Inventory $20,000.00 $297.50 $19,702.50 $297.50 4129-101

Wetland Restoration Workshop, Education, and Planning $5,000.00 $1,416.50 $3,583.50 $1,416.50 4129-101 DW-8

Contingency* $40,000.00 4129-101

GIS Maintenance
GIS Maintenance $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 4170-101 DW-13

Monitoring Water Quality/Project Monitoring
Lake Water Quality Monitoring (Misc QA/QC) $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 4520-101 DW-2

Annual WQ Report Assistance $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 4520-101 DW-2

Special Project BMP Monitoring $25,000.00 $242.50 $24,757.50 $242.50 4520-101 DW-12

Grass Lake Berm Wetland Monitoring $12,000.00 $150.00 $11,850.00 $150.00 4520-101 DW-5

Battle Creek Monitoring to address TMDL $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

Permit Processing, Inspection and Enforcement
Permit Application Inspection and Enforcement $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 4122-101 DW-7
Permit Application Review $59,000.00 $1,779.00 $57,221.00 $1,779.00 4124-101 DW-7

Lake Studies/TMDL Reports

West Vadnais Lake Incorporation $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

2023 Grant Applications $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 4661-101 DW-13

WMP Updates - Including Implementation Plan Updates if needed $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 4661-101 DW-13

Prioritization of water quality projects from subwatershed feasibility studies $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 4661-101 DW-13

Carver Ponds Internal Load Reduction $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00

Contingency for Lake Studies $22,500.00 $0.00 $22,500.00 4661-101

Research Projects
New Technology Mini Case Studies (average 6 per year) $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 4695-101 DW-12

Kohlman Permeable Weir Test System - Implement Monitoring Plan $0.00 $150.00 -$150.00 $150.00 4695-101 DW-12

Shallow Lake Aeration Study $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 4695-101 DW-12

Project Operations
2021 Tanners Alum Facility Monitoring $17,000.00 $0.00 $17,000.00 4650-101 TaL-3

Phalen/Keller and Twin Operations Support & Communications $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00

Lake Level Station Operation and Maintenance (add rain gauges?) $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

Capital Improvements
Tanners Outlet $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 4128-520
Woodbury Target $180,000.00 $19,921.00 $160,079.00 $1,787.50 4128-518

Targeted Retrofit Projects 2023 $150,000.00 $1,497.00 $148,503.00 $1,497.00 4128-518 DW-6

Stewardship Grant Program $75,000.00 $1,460.50 $73,539.50 $1,460.50 4682-529 DW-6

West Industrial Park Berm and associated improvements $300,000.00 $0.00 $300,000.00 4128-520 GC-3

Lake Emily Subwatershed BMP $160,000.00 $65,130.76 $94,869.24 $737.50 4128-518 LE-3

Pioneer Park Stormwater Reuse $151,200.00 $11,781.04 $139,418.96 $4,624.91 4128-518

Double Driveway and Fish Creek Tributary Improvements $112,200.00 $1,483.50 $110,716.50 $1,483.50 4129-101 FC-2

CIP Project Repair & Maintenance

Routine CIP Inspection and Unplanned Maintenance Identification $125,000.00 $1,642.50 $123,357.50 $1,642.50 4128-516 DW-5

2023 CIP Maintenance and Repairs $165,000.00 $40,873.40 $124,126.60 $4,740.00 4128-516 DW-5

$38,752.91
                                       Barr declares under the penalties of Law that this Account,

                                       Claim, or Demand is just and that no part has been paid.

Bradley J. Lindaman,  Vice President

Summary of Professional Engineering Services During the Period  
                January 1, 2023 through January 13, 2023





Stewardship Grant Application Summary

Native Habitat Restoration(1), Rain Garden(3)

$61,000.00

Staff recommends approval of this application.

This project is located off South Owasso Boulevard just south of Lake Owasso in the City of 
Roseville.  The townhome association is proposing to install a dry creek bed and rain 
gardens to help alleviate drainage issues they experience after heavy rainfalls. This project 
is located in a  priority subwatershed so this portion of the work is eligible for 100% 
coverage up to $100,000.  They are also proposing to install native plantings around the dry 
creek bed to reduce the area that needs to be mowed.  This portion is eligible for 50% 
coverage up to $15,000.  The grant request for this portion is about $8,000.

Subwatershed:

Lake Owasso

BMP type(s):

Grant Request:

Recommendation:

Project Name: Owasso Heights Townhomes Application Number: 23-01 CS

Residential Commercial/Government

Project Overview:

Location Maps:

Applicant Name: Darlene Gorrill

Board Meeting Date: 2/1/2023



RAMSEY COUNTY SWCD
2015 VAN DYKE STREET

MAPLEWOOD, MN 55109
651-266-7280

www.ramseycounty.us

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

WATERSHED DISTRICT:

DESIGNER:
DATE:
PAST REVISION:
PAST REVISION:
PAST REVISION:
PAST REVISION:
CHECKED BY:
TAA:

L100

SI
TE

 L
AY

O
U

T

NOTES:

SCALE:

OWASSO HEIGHTS TOWNHOMES

2962-2947 HIGHCOURTE
ROSEVILLE, MN 55113

BTO
10/26/2022

9/1/2022

 

-CONTACT GOPHER STATE ONE CALL TO
CONFIRM UTILITY LOCATIONS
-ELEVATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE,
SITE VERIFY
-VERIFY ANY BID ALTERNATES OR ONSITE
CHANGES WITH SWCD STAFF PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION
-ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 11"x17"

1"=40'-0"

 

PROPERTY LINE

2962
HIGHCOURTE

SID
EW

ALK

932'

A

HIGHCOURTE

WESTERN AVE N.

O
W

AS
SO

 H
IL

LS
 D

R
.

A

B

B
C

D

E

934'

936'

936'

938'

940'

930'930'

932'934'

928'

926'

930'

928'

926'

924'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPOSED DRY CREEK BED, NATIVE 
VEGETATION SWALE & RAINGARDENS 
[8,630 SF TOTAL PROJECT AREA]

EXISTING CANOPY TREE 
[TYP]

EXISTING EVERGREEN 
TREE [TYP]

PROPOSED TREE 
REMOVAL [TYP]

W
AT

ER
 F

LO
W

W
ATER

 FLO
W

WATER FLOW

INSTALL DRAINTILE ALONG 
LENGTH OF SWALE BENEATH 
DRY CREEK BED ROCK [100 LF]

INSTALL DRAINTILE ALONG 
LENGTH OF SWALE BENEATH 
DRY CREEK BED ROCK [85 LF]

INSTALL DRAINTILE POP UP FOR SWALE
OVERFLOW [ELEVATION: 931.25']

[APPROX. 6" BELOW PATIO ELEVATION]

INSTALL DRAINTILE POP UP FOR SWALE
OVERFLOW [ELEVATION: 930.75']

[APPROX. 6" BELOW PATIO ELEVATION]

INSTALL DRAINTILE POP UP FOR SWALE
OVERFLOW [ELEVATION: 930.21']

[APPROX. 6" BELOW PATIO ELEVATION]

INSTALL DRAINTILE POP UP FOR SWALE
OVERFLOW [ELEVATION: 930.57']

[APPROX. 6" BELOW PATIO ELEVATION]

SWALE HIGH POINT [SWALE SLOPES IN 
OPPOSITE DIRECTIONS FROM THIS POINT]

NATIVE PLANTED SWALE

DRY CREEK BED ROCK &
RAINGARDEN OVERFLOW ROCK

FLAT RAINGARDEN BASIN

RAINGARDEN SIDE SLOPES

PLAN LEGEND:

~23'-6"~17'-6"

~1
6'

-0
"~1

6'
-6

"

~20'-0"

~15'-0"

~15'-0"

DRY CREEK BED ALONG
CENTERLINE OF SWALE

[475 SF]

DRY CREEK BED ALONG 
CENTERLINE OF SWALE 
[740 SF]

OWASSO HEIGHTS TOWNHOMES
BIO-SWALE & RAINGARDENS PROJECT

ITEM A: NATIVE VEGETATION SWALE
ITEM B: DRY CREEK BED / DRAIN TILE
ITEM C: RAINGARDEN #1
ITEM D: RAINGARDEN #2
ITEM E: RAINGARDEN #3

PROJECT LOCATION

NOTES:

1. SEE ITEMS A & B DRY CREEK BED / DRAIN
TILE & VEGETATED SWALE INSTALLATION
NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS ON SHEET L500.
2. SEE DRY CREEK BED AND DRAIN TILE DETAIL
DRAWINGS ON SHEET L400.
3. EXISTING IRRIGATION LINES WITHIN
PROJECT AREA. IRRIGATION DISTURBANCE TO 
BE REPAIRED/RETROFITTED. SEE NOTES ON 
SHEET L500.



Consent Agenda Item 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 1, 2023       Agenda Item No: 4D 
 
Preparer:   Tina Carstens, Administrator  
 
 
Item Description:  District Liability Insurance Coverage Waiver  
 
 
Background: 
As required by our annual insurance renewal application, we need to stipulate whether the 
District waives the tort liability limits set by the legislature for government agencies. The 
District has historically chosen to not waive the liability limits, which limits our exposure to 
liability claims to the legislative limit of $500,000 per individual or $1,500,000 in total. I have 
completed the form accordingly and attached it to this request for board action.  
 
 
Applicable District Goal and Action Item: 
 
Goal:  Manage effectively: The District will operate in a manner that achieves its mission while 
adhering to its core principles.  
 
Action Item:  Follow all legal requirements applicable to watershed districts.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the Liability Coverage Waiver Form indicating the District does not waive the monetary 
limits on municipal tort liability.  
 
 
Financial Implications: 
There are no budget implications for this action at this time.  
 
 
Board Action Requested: 
Approve the Liability Coverage Waiver Form indicating the District does not waive the monetary 
limits on municipal tort liability.  
 



�

�����������	
����������
����	���
�
�

����������������� �!����!��"�#�$���%������&%������'��%&���(���  ������)������* �&�� #��+�&���
,'�)*+-��&���#��.!����� /����&� ������(�������'�)*+���(��������������0���((�#��$��/�����(�
#�$���%�1�2��&� �#��.!���/�(�������"�&��& /����������������!����.���#�3!�#1��%1�

�
�

4567869:;:<=7><7?@:A67<B7=<>7?@:A67>567;>@>C><BD7><B>7E:F:>;7FC;>7G67F@867@==C@EED7GD7>5677
F6FG6BH;7I<A6B=:=I7G<8DJ7:=79<=;CE>@>:<=7?:>57:>;7@>><B=6D7:K7=696;;@BDL7

�
MNOPNQR�STU�UPVWXY�ZXWPXZXV[�\U]NQŴN�_QUO�̀Mabc�OdRV�eN\XeN�STNVTNQ�VU�SWX]N�VTN�RVWVdVUQ[�VUQV�
ZXWPXZXV[�ZXOXVR�VU�VTN�NfVNYV�U_�VTN�\U]NQŴN�gdQ\TWRNeh��cTN�eN\XRXUY�TWR�VTN�_UZZUSXŶ�N__N\VRi�
�

j�kK7>567F6FG6B78<6;7=<>7?@:A67>567;>@>C><BD7><B>7E:F:>;l�WY�XYeX]XedWZ�\ZWXOWYV�\UdZe�QN\U]NQ�YU�OUQN�
VTWY�mnoolooo�UY�WY[�\ZWXO�VU�STX\T�VTN�RVWVdVUQ[�VUQV�ZXOXVR�WggZ[h��cTN�VUVWZ�WZZ�\ZWXOWYVR�\UdZe�
QN\U]NQ�_UQ�W�RXŶZN�U\\dQQNY\N�VU�STX\T�VTN�RVWVdVUQ[�VUQV�ZXOXVR�WggZ[�SUdZe�PN�ZXOXVNe�VU�mplnooloooh��
cTNRN�RVWVdVUQ[�VUQV�ZXOXVR�SUdZe�WggZ[�QN̂WQeZNRR�U_�STNVTNQ�VTN�ONOPNQ�gdQ\TWRNR�VTN�UgVXUYWZ�
M̀abc�Nf\NRR�ZXWPXZXV[�\U]NQŴNh�
�
�

j�kK7>567F6FG6B7?@:A6;7>567;>@>C><BD7><B>7E:F:>;7@=878<6;7=<>7qCB95@;676r96;;7E:@G:E:>D79<A6B@I6l�W�RXŶZN�
\ZWXOWYV�\UdZe�QN\U]NQ�dg�VU�mslooolooo�_UQ�W�RXŶZN�U\\dQQNY\N�tdYeNQ�VTN�SWX]N�UgVXUYl�VTN�VUQV�\Wg�
ZXWPXZXV[�ZXOXVR�WQN�UYZ[�SWX]Ne�VU�VTN�NfVNYV�U_�VTN�ONOPNQuR�ZXWPXZXV[�\U]NQŴN�ZXOXVRl�WYe�VTN�̀Mabc�
gNQ�U\\dQQNY\N�ZXOXV�XR�mslooolooovh�cTN�VUVWZ�WZZ�\ZWXOWYVR�\UdZe�QN\U]NQ�_UQ�W�RXŶZN�U\\dQQNY\N�VU�
STX\T�VTN�RVWVdVUQ[�VUQV�ZXOXVR�WggZ[�SUdZe�WZRU�PN�ZXOXVNe�VU�msloooloool�QN̂WQeZNRR�U_�VTN�YdOPNQ�U_�
\ZWXOWYVRh�
�
�

j�kK7>567F6FG6B7?@:A6;7>567;>@>C><BD7><B>7E:F:>;7@=87qCB95@;6;76r96;;7E:@G:E:>D79<A6B@I6l�W�RXŶZN�\ZWXOWYV�
\UdZe�gUVNYVXWZZ[�QN\U]NQ�WY�WOUdYV�dg�VU�VTN�ZXOXV�U_�VTN�\U]NQŴN�gdQ\TWRNeh��cTN�VUVWZ�WZZ�\ZWXOWYVR�
\UdZe�QN\U]NQ�_UQ�W�RXŶZN�U\\dQQNY\N�VU�STX\T�VTN�RVWVdVUQ[�VUQV�ZXOXVR�WggZ[�SUdZe�WZRU�PN�ZXOXVNe�VU�
VTN�WOUdYV�U_�\U]NQŴN�gdQ\TWRNel�QN̂WQeZNRR�U_�VTN�YdOPNQ�U_�\ZWXOWYVRh�
�
�
aZWXOR�VU�STX\T�VTN�RVWVdVUQ[�OdYX\XgWZ�VUQV�ZXOXVR�eU�YUV�WggZ[�WQN�YUV�W__N\VNe�P[�VTXR�eN\XRXUYh��
� �



��

��������	
����	���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������
� ����	�	
�������� �!�"#$%��&���	'(�&�)�*+	+&,�'(�	-(+.+/*�&'�&�*+
+*+&)��,&
*+,��0�
)��+((1
2&&1�3�4551641

� ����	�	
���"#$%���&���	'(�&�)�*+	+&,�'(�	-(+.+/*�&'�&�*+
+*+&)��,&
*+,��0�
)��+((1�2&&1�3
4551647�&'�&����8&�(&�'9�&���*+	+&,�'9�&���*+
+*+&)�.':��;��'
&+(�0�9�'	������1

<&��'9�	�	
��=,�;':��(+(;�
'0)�	��&+(;�����������������������������������������������

2+;(&-���� �������>',+&+'(����������������������������������Administrator

02/01/2023

X



 
 

************ 
Permit 

Program 
 

************ 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Permit Application Coversheet

Date February 01, 2023

Project Name Caretta Assisted Living Project Number 23-02

Applicant Name Lucas Larson, Galahad Development

This project is located off County Road C East, west of White Bear Avenue in the City of 
Maplewood. The total site area is 3.3 acres. The applicant is proposing to construct an 
assisted living building with associated parking lot. A future second building on the east side 
of the site is planned, thus additional impervious area was accounted for in the stormwater 
calculations for this permit. Two underground filtration systems are proposed to meet 
stormwater treatment requirements. Filtration is being proposed due to poor soils and high 
groundwater. Pretreatment methods include sumped catch basins with snout skimmer 
devices. A portion of the site is located within the 100-year floodplain, and no net fill is 
proposed to maintain existing flood storage on the landscape. Three wetlands were 
delineated onsite, one of which is deemed incidental (#21-17 WCA decision 11/18/21, #22-11 
WCA decision 9/16/22). A Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) application was also submitted for 
installation of a stormwater flared end section near the wetland to the south (#23-01 WCA 
decision 1/23/23). A variance request for temporary disturbance in the upland buffer of 
Wetland 3 is being requested to accommodate this pipe work. The disturbed buffer area will 
be restored with a native seed mix, and the applicant has demonstrated RWMWD buffer 
requirements are being met in the final, proposed condition.

Wetlands

Stormwater Management

Erosion and Sediment Control

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to handle the runoff from the site 
and preserves existing flood storage on the landscape.

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water 
resources during construction.

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to protect the long term quality of 
downstream water resources.

Staff recommends approval of this permit with the special provisions and variance request 
(Rule E).

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

Water Quantity Considerations

Water Quality Considerations

Short Term

Long Term

Staff Recommendation

Property Description

Type of Development Residential

Floodplain



 Project Location Map

Project Grading Plan

Attachments:



&

&

Kohlman Creek
Subwatershed

COUNTY ROAD C E

W
H
IT
E 
BE
A
R 
A
V
E

V
A
N
 D
YK

E 
ST

Copyright nearmap 2015

0 0.040.02
Miles

0 0.070.04
Kilometers

& Flow Arrows

Roads

Permits

Cities

Subwatersheds

Creeks

ParcelsRamsey

RWMWD Boundary

Highlighted Areas
Represent Active Permit

Wetlands
Manage A

Manage B

Manage C

Lake

Sediment Pond

Not Assessed

#23-02  Caretta Assisted Living



Special Provisions

23-02

1. The applicant shall submit the escrow fee of $16,350.

2. The applicant shall submit the final, signed plans.

3. The applicant shall submit the joint stormwater maintenance agreement 
with the City of Maplewood for the proposed stormwater treatment facilities.

4. The applicant shall submit the final geotechnical report.

5. The applicant shall submit contact information for the trained erosion 
control coordinator responsible for implementing the SWPPP.

6. The applicant shall submit the approved Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency's NPDES Construction Permit coverage for the project.

Wednesday, January 25, 2023 Page 1 of 1





 

6120 Earle Brown Drive, Suite 700, Minneapolis, MN  55430  763-843-0420 
3507 Ringsby Court, Suite 105, Denver, CO 80216  720-515-9807 

www.bkbm.com 

VARIANCE REQUEST 

 

Nicole Soderholm 

Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District 

2665 Noel Drive 

Little Canada, MN 55117 

 

 

Re: Caretta Assisted Living & Memory Care 

 BKBM Project No. 21435.50 

 

 

Dear Nicole: 

 

The developer (Galahad Development) of the Caretta Assisted Living and Memory Care project in 

Maplewood is requesting a variance to the no-disturb buffer requirements as outlined in Rule E of 

the Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District’s (RWMWD) rules.   

 

There are 3 wetlands surrounding the proposed development.  Wetland 1 (Manage B) is located to 

the south of the development, Wetland 2 (Manage C) is located to the west of the development, and 

Wetland 3 (Manage C) is located to the north of the development (see attached wetland impact 

drawing C7.0).  Please note that no impacts to the existing wetland buffer for Wetland 2 are being 

proposed.  In addition, Wetland 3 was approved as an incidental wetland per Permit #22-11 WCA 

Notice of Decision 09/16/2022.  This variance request is regarding the proposed disturbance of the 

wetland buffer for Wetland 1. 

RWMWD Rule E requires a no-disturb buffer of 50’ on average with a minimum buffer of 25’ for 

Manage B wetlands.  As shown on the wetland impact drawing, a portion of the existing buffer for 

Wetland 1 will be impacted for proposed utility work.   

The attached storm sewer exhibit shows the location of the existing storm sewer pipe that is routed 

through the center of the property.  This pipe receives stormwater runoff from County Road C and 

directs the runoff to the existing creek south of the development.  Because of the existing storm 

sewer’s location on the site, the development cannot reasonably avoid the existing storm sewer line.  

As such, the project is proposing to reroute the existing sewer line around the east side of the 

proposed building and to provide a new discharge location into the creek, east of the current flared 

end section outlet.   

Because of the proposed storm sewer rerouting, the project would require disturbance of the existing 

wetland buffer.  Buffer disturbance would be necessary on the southwest side of the site for the 

contractor to access and remove the existing flared end section outlet and bulkhead the existing pipe.  

Buffer disturbance would also be required for the installation of the new storm sewer on the 



Page 2 

 

southeast side of the site between STRM 100 to STRM 101.  Once the storm sewer for this area has 

been installed, the buffer will be restored to its original conditions as detailed on the landscape plans 

(attached).   

It should be noted that the design team and developer have been in discussion with the City of 

Maplewood and Ramsey County to develop storm sewer route that limits the overall wetland 

disturbance and will minimize the impact to trees within the wetland buffer areas.   

Because of the need to reroute the storm sewer pipe to maintain drainage for the County Road C 

stormwater runoff, the developer is requesting a variance to Rule E of the Ramsey-Washington 

Metro Watershed District’s rules.  If the variance is granted, the developer, contractor, and design 

team will work with the RWMWD to expedite the proposed utility work and quickly stabilize the 

buffer areas that are disturbed.    

Sincerely, 

 

BKBM Engineers 

 

Kevin A. Bohl, P.E. 

Associate Principal  

763-843-0427 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F:\21\21435\correspondence\governing agencies\review comments\watershed district\variance request memo.docx 



c c c c c c c c c c c

c c c c c c

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=920.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=921.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PIPE W-E INV.=905.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=922.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PIPE S INV.=906.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PIPE W-E INV.=905.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=918.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RPC N INV.=910.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP SW INV.=910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=920.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER BKBM FIELD VISIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" FES PIPE ELEV.=907.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING FFE 920.00 (ARCH. 100.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST FILTRATION TANK  INV: 913.80 HWL: 916.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST FILTRATION TANK INV: 912.18  HWL: 916.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO  PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO  PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO  PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
(100-YEAR WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE ELEVATION = 913.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMWD  50' BUFFER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMWD  50' BUFFER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER INSTALLED WITHIN WETLAND BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER TO CONNECT TO PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER UNDERNEATH PROPOSED BUILDING FOOTPRINT TO BE REMOVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER UNDERNEATH PROPOSED BUILDING FOOTPRINT TO BE REMOVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER TO BE  BULK HEADED AND ABANDONED IN PLACE TO AVOID WETLAND BUFFER DISTURBANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FLARED END SECTION TO BE REMOVED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FLARED END SECTION INSTALLED WITHIN WETLAND LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER EXHIBIT



NO BUILDINGS ON SITE

c c c c c c c c c c c

c c c c c c

ARCHITECT:

7803 Glenroy Road, Suite 200
Bloomington, MN  55439
952-288-2000
952-288-2031 fax

REGISTRATION

DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT MANAGER

PROJECT

LOCATION

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

PLOT DATE:

PREPARED FOR

7803 Glenroy Road, Suite 200
Bloomington, MN  55439
952-288-2000
952-288-2031 fax

I hereby certify that this plan, specification
or report was prepared by me or under my
direct supervision and that I am a duly
Licensed Professional Engineer under the
laws of the State of Minnesota

KEVIN A. BOHL

REG #

NPA

WH

12/21/22

21435.50

CARETTA
ASSISTED LIVING
& MEMORY CARE

MAPLEWOOD, MN

Date:___XX/XX/22_____

ISSUE RECORD

No. Description Date
CITY /

WATERSHED
REVIEW SET

11/23/2022

52209

WETLAND
DELINEATION

EX. A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=920.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=919.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PIPE S-N INV.=907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=921.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PIPE W-E INV.=905.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=922.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PIPE S INV.=906.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PIPE W-E INV.=905.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=918.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RPC N INV.=910.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP SW INV.=910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=920.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  3

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.14G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.87G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.65G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.22G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.01G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.26G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.52G

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.29G

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.33G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.17G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.26G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.65G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.75G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.42G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.39G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.50G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.60G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.68G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.74G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.97G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.75G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.34G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.51G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.90G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.98G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.22G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.23G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.58G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.68G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
926.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
926.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER BKBM FIELD VISIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.17G

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.78G

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.14G

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.89G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.64G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.67G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.85G

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.85G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.13G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.36G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.91G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.79G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.61G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.43G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.63G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.52G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.45G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.45G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.45G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.47G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.46G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.51G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.56G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.23G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
926.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
907

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" FES PIPE ELEV.=907.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART of

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.99G

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.71G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.34G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.25G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.07G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSJ BENCHMARK #3 TOP OF NAIL ELEV.=919.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSJ BENCHMARK #2 TOP OF NAIL ELEV.=922.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSJ BENCHMARK #1 TOP NUT HYDRANT ELEV.=922.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Ramsey County Parks And Rec 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Carol A Guzzo

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Nm Clean 1 Llc 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Ramsey County Parks And Rec 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
of SEC. 11, T. 29, R. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE 1/4 of NW 1/4 of NW 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approx. location of FES approx. INV: 907.77 (BKBM) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. INV: 914.42 (BKBM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H. RIM=919.82 8" PIPE S-N INV.=907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELINEATED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELINEATED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELINEATED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(100-YEAR WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE ELEVATION = 913.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMWD  25' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMWD  50' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=920.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=921.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PIPE W-E INV.=905.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=922.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PIPE S INV.=906.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" PIPE W-E INV.=905.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=920.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  3

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.14G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.87G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.65G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.22G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.01G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.26G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.52G

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.33G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.17G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.26G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.65G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.75G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.42G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.39G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.50G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.60G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.68G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.74G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.97G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.75G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.34G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.51G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.90G

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.98G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.22G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.23G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.58G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.68G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
926.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
926.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
906.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
907.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
908.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.17G

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.78G

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.14G

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.89G

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.64G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.67G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.85G

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.85G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.13G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.36G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.91G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.79G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.61G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.43G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.63G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.52G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.45G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.45G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.45G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.47G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.46G

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.51G

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
926.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
925.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
911.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
924.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
923.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
918.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
919.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
913.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
909.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
912.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
916.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
915.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
917.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
922.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
907

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" FES PIPE ELEV.=907.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART of

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.99G

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.71G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.34G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.25G

AutoCAD SHX Text
921.07G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSJ BENCHMARK #3 TOP OF NAIL ELEV.=919.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSJ BENCHMARK #2 TOP OF NAIL ELEV.=922.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSJ BENCHMARK #1 TOP NUT HYDRANT ELEV.=922.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Ramsey County Parks And Rec 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Carol A Guzzo

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Nm Clean 1 Llc 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Ramsey County Parks And Rec 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
of SEC. 11, T. 29, R. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE 1/4 of NW 1/4 of NW 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING FFE 920.00 (ARCH. 100.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. INV: 914.42 (BKBM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST FILTRATION TANK  INV: 913.80 HWL: 916.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST FILTRATION TANK INV: 912.18  HWL: 916.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. M.H. RIM=919.82 8" PIPE S-N INV.=907.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELINEATED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELINEATED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELINEATED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO  PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO  PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO  PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(100-YEAR WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE ELEVATION = 913.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMWD  25' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RWMWD  50' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" =

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONDITIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBED AND REPLACED WETLAND BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVED WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROPOSED PLAN SYMBOLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMSEY WASHINGTON METRO WATERSHED DISTRICT WETLAND CLASSIFICATIONS WETLAND #1: MANAGEMENT TYPE - MANAGE B RWMWD BUFFER REQUIREMENTS -            - AVERAGE BUFFER WIDTH = 50 FEET           - MINIMUM BUFFER WIDTH = 25 FEET WETLAND #2: MANAGEMENT TYPE - MANAGE C RWMWD BUFFER REQUIREMENTS -            - AVERAGE BUFFER WIDTH = 25 FEET           - MINIMUM BUFFER WIDTH = 12.5 FEET WETLAND #3: MANAGEMENT TYPE - MANAGE C RWMWD BUFFER REQUIREMENTS -            - AVERAGE BUFFER WIDTH = 25 FEET           - MINIMUM BUFFER WIDTH = 12.5 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND DISTURBANCE: TOTAL MANAGE B WETLAND DISTURBANCE = 82 SQ. FT. TOTAL MANAGE C WETLAND DISTURBANCE = 316 SQ. FT. TOTAL MANAGE B BUFFER DISTURBANCE = 2,509 SQ. FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND/CREEK BUFFERS: WETLAND 1 - 50' BUFFER MAINTAINED.  WETLAND 2 - 25' BUFFER MAINTAINED  WETLAND 3 - LOSS OF WEST BUFFER (NOT MAINTAINED)





BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 1 

 

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act  
Notice of Decision 

Local Government Unit:  Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District     County: Ramsey                       
Applicant Name:  Lucas Larson (Galahad Development) Applicant Representative: Scott Thelen (Pinnacle 
Engineering, Inc.)        
Project Name: Galahad Development               LGU Project No. (if any): 21-17 WCA                                         
Date Complete Application Received by LGU: 10/14/2021                                          
Date of LGU Decision: 11/10/2021                                              
Date this Notice was Sent: 11/18/2021                                                 

 

WCA Decision Type - check all that apply 
☒Wetland Boundary/Type      ☐Sequencing       ☐Replacement Plan           ☐Bank Plan (not credit 

purchase)                                  
☐No-Loss (8420.0415)                                                                   ☐Exemption (8420.0420) 

   Part: ☐ A ☐ B  ☐ C ☐ D ☐ E  ☐ F  ☐ G  ☐ H                             Subpart: ☐ 2 ☐ 3 ☐ 4 ☐ 5  ☐ 6 ☐ 7  ☐ 8 ☐ 9 
 

Replacement Plan Impacts (replacement plan decisions only) 
Total WCA Wetland Impact Area:                                                                
Wetland Replacement Type:    ☐  Project Specific Credits:                                               
                                                       ☐  Bank Credits:                                                   
Bank Account Number(s):                                                               

 

Technical Evaluation Panel Findings and Recommendations (attach if any) 
☒ Approve    ☐  Approve w/Conditions     ☐ Deny      ☐  No TEP Recommendation 
 

 

LGU Decision 
☐  Approved with Conditions (specify below)1                  ☒  Approved1                                        ☐  Denied 
    List Conditions:                                                   

Decision-Maker for this Application: ☒ Staff   ☐ Governing Board/Council  ☐ Other:               
 

Decision is valid for: ☒ 5 years (default)   ☐ Other (specify):                           
 

1 Wetland Replacement Plan approval is not valid until BWSR confirms the withdrawal of any required wetland bank credits. For project-
specific replacement a financial assurance per MN Rule 8420.0522, Subp. 9 and evidence that all required forms have been recorded on 
the title of the property on which the replacement wetland is located must be provided to the LGU for the approval to be valid. 
 

LGU Findings – Attach document(s) and/or insert narrative providing the basis for the LGU decision1.  
☐ Attachment(s) (specify):  
☒ Summary: Nicole Soderholm (RWMWD- LGU) completed a field review with Scott Thelen and Ben Meyer 
(BWSR) on 11/9/21. No changes were requested to the delineation report.  

1 Findings must consider any TEP recommendations. 
 

Attached Project Documents 



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 2 

☒ Site Location Map    ☐ Project Plan(s)/Descriptions/Reports (specify):  

 
Appeals of LGU Decisions 
If you wish to appeal this decision, you must provide a written request within 30 calendar days of the date you 
received the notice. All appeals must be submitted to the Board of Water and Soil Resources Executive Director 
along with a check payable to BWSR for $500 unless the LGU has adopted a local appeal process as identified 
below. The check must be sent by mail and the written request to appeal can be submitted by mail or e-mail. 
The appeal should include a copy of this notice, name and contact information of appellant(s) and their 
representatives (if applicable), a statement clarifying the intent to appeal and supporting information as to why 
the decision is in error. Send to: 
 

Appeals & Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
Minnesota Board of Water & Soils Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
travis.germundson@state.mn.us 

 

Does the LGU have a local appeal process applicable to this decision? 
☐  Yes1   ☒  No 
1If yes, all appeals must first be considered via the local appeals process. 
 

Local Appeals Submittal Requirements (LGU must describe how to appeal, submittal requirements, fees, etc. as applicable) 
                         

 

Notice Distribution (include name) 
Required on all notices: 
☒ SWCD TEP Member: Emily Deering (Ramsey County)         ☒  BWSR TEP Member:  Ben Meyer     
☐ LGU TEP Member (if different than LGU contact):                                                
☒ DNR Representative:  Leslie Parris                                               
☐ Watershed District or Watershed Mgmt. Org.:                                                   
☒ Applicant (notice only):                   ☒ Agent/Consultant (notice only):                                                        

 

Optional or As Applicable: 
☒ Corps of Engineers: Melissa Jenny                                               
☐ BWSR Wetland Mitigation Coordinator (required for bank plan applications only):                                                  
☐ Members of the Public (notice only):                                               ☒ Other: Kevin Bohl (BKBM)                                       
       

 

Signature:                                                Date:                                                

11/18/2021 

This notice and accompanying application materials may be sent electronically or by mail. The LGU may opt to send a 
summary of the application to members of the public upon request per 8420.0255, Subp. 3.   

mailto:travis.germundson@state.mn.us


BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 1 

 

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act  
Notice of Decision 

Local Government Unit:  Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD)     County: Ramsey                       
Applicant Name: Lucas Larson (Galahad Development)  Applicant Representative: Scott Thelen (Pinnacle 
Engineering, Inc.)       
Project Name: Galahad Development Incidental Request               LGU Project No. (if any): 22-11 WCA                                       
  
Date Complete Application Received by LGU: 8/26/2022                                          
Date of LGU Decision: 9/14/2022                                              
Date this Notice was Sent: 9/16/2022                                                

 

WCA Decision Type - check all that apply 
☐Wetland Boundary/Type      ☐Sequencing       ☐Replacement Plan           ☐Bank Plan (not credit 

purchase)                                  
☒No-Loss (8420.0415)                                                                   ☐Exemption (8420.0420) 

   Part: ☒ A ☐ B  ☐ C ☐ D ☐ E  ☐ F  ☐ G  ☐ H                             Subpart: ☐ 2 ☐ 3 ☐ 4 ☐ 5  ☐ 6 ☐ 7  ☐ 8 ☐ 9 
 

Replacement Plan Impacts (replacement plan decisions only) 
Total WCA Wetland Impact Area:                                                                
Wetland Replacement Type:    ☐  Project Specific Credits:                                               
                                                       ☐  Bank Credits:                                                   
Bank Account Number(s):                                                               

 

Technical Evaluation Panel Findings and Recommendations (attach if any) 
☐ Approve    ☐  Approve w/Conditions     ☐ Deny      ☒  No TEP Recommendation 
 

 

LGU Decision 
☐  Approved with Conditions (specify below)1                  ☒  Approved1                                        ☐  Denied 
    List Conditions:   

Decision-Maker for this Application: ☒ Staff   ☐ Governing Board/Council  ☐ Other:               
 

Decision is valid for: ☒ 5 years (default)   ☐ Other (specify):                           
 

1 Wetland Replacement Plan approval is not valid until BWSR confirms the withdrawal of any required wetland bank credits. For project-
specific replacement a financial assurance per MN Rule 8420.0522, Subp. 9 and evidence that all required forms have been recorded on 
the title of the property on which the replacement wetland is located must be provided to the LGU for the approval to be valid. 
 

LGU Findings – Attach document(s) and/or insert narrative providing the basis for the LGU decision1.  
☐ Attachment(s) (specify):  
☒ Summary: The information submitted for Wetland 3 is consistent with a finding of incidental and is 
therefore not regulated by WCA. 

1 Findings must consider any TEP recommendations. 
 



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 2 

Attached Project Documents 
☒ Site Location Map    ☐ Project Plan(s)/Descriptions/Reports (specify):  

 
Appeals of LGU Decisions 
If you wish to appeal this decision, you must provide a written request within 30 calendar days of the date you 
received the notice. All appeals must be submitted to the Board of Water and Soil Resources Executive Director 
along with a check payable to BWSR for $500 unless the LGU has adopted a local appeal process as identified 
below. The check must be sent by mail and the written request to appeal can be submitted by mail or e-mail. 
The appeal should include a copy of this notice, name and contact information of appellant(s) and their 
representatives (if applicable), a statement clarifying the intent to appeal and supporting information as to why 
the decision is in error. Send to: 
 

Appeals & Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
Minnesota Board of Water & Soils Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
travis.germundson@state.mn.us 

 

Does the LGU have a local appeal process applicable to this decision? 
☐  Yes1   ☒  No 
1If yes, all appeals must first be considered via the local appeals process. 
 

Local Appeals Submittal Requirements (LGU must describe how to appeal, submittal requirements, fees, etc. as applicable) 
                         

 

Notice Distribution (include name) 
Required on all notices: 
☒ SWCD TEP Member: Mike Goodnature (Ramsey County)         ☒  BWSR TEP Member:  Ben Meyer     
☐ LGU TEP Member (if different than LGU contact):                                                
☒ DNR Representative: Jim Levitt                                              
☐ Watershed District or Watershed Mgmt. Org.:                                                   
☒ Applicant (notice only):                   ☐ Agent/Consultant (notice only):                                                        

 

Optional or As Applicable: 
☒ Corps of Engineers:                                               
☐ BWSR Wetland Mitigation Coordinator (required for bank plan applications only):                                                  
☐ Members of the Public (notice only):                                               ☐ Other:                                             

 

Signature:                                                Date:                                                

9/16/2022 

This notice and accompanying application materials may be sent electronically or by mail. The LGU may opt to send a 
summary of the application to members of the public upon request per 8420.0255, Subp. 3.   

mailto:travis.germundson@state.mn.us


BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 1 

 

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act  
Notice of Decision 

Local Government Unit:  Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD)     County: Ramsey                       
Applicant Name: Lucas Larson (Galahad Development)  Applicant Representative: Scott Thelen (Pinnacle 
Engineering, Inc.)      
Project Name: Caretta Assisted Living De Minimis               LGU Project No. (if any): 23-01 WCA                                       
  
Date Complete Application Received by LGU: 1/10/2022                                          
Date of LGU Decision: 1/23/2023                                              
Date this Notice was Sent: 1/23/2023                                                

 

WCA Decision Type - check all that apply 
☐Wetland Boundary/Type      ☐Sequencing       ☐Replacement Plan           ☐Bank Plan (not credit 

purchase)                                  
☐No-Loss (8420.0415)                                                                   ☒Exemption (8420.0420) 

   Part: ☐ A ☐ B  ☐ C ☐ D ☐ E  ☐ F  ☐ G  ☐ H                            Subpart: ☐ 2 ☐ 3 ☐ 4 ☐ 5  ☐ 6 ☐ 7  ☒ 8 ☐ 9 
 

Replacement Plan Impacts (replacement plan decisions only) 
Total WCA Wetland Impact Area:                                                                
Wetland Replacement Type:    ☐  Project Specific Credits:                                               
                                                       ☐  Bank Credits:                                                   
Bank Account Number(s):                                                               

 

Technical Evaluation Panel Findings and Recommendations (attach if any) 
☐ Approve    ☐  Approve w/Conditions     ☐ Deny      ☒  No TEP Recommendation 
 

 

LGU Decision 
☐  Approved with Conditions (specify below)1                  ☒  Approved1                                        ☐  Denied 
    List Conditions:   
 

Decision-Maker for this Application: ☒ Staff   ☐ Governing Board/Council  ☐ Other:               
 

Decision is valid for: ☒ 5 years (default)   ☐ Other (specify):                           
 

1 Wetland Replacement Plan approval is not valid until BWSR confirms the withdrawal of any required wetland bank credits. For project-
specific replacement a financial assurance per MN Rule 8420.0522, Subp. 9 and evidence that all required forms have been recorded on 
the title of the property on which the replacement wetland is located must be provided to the LGU for the approval to be valid. 
 

LGU Findings – Attach document(s) and/or insert narrative providing the basis for the LGU decision1.  
☐ Attachment(s) (specify):  
☒ Summary: An upcoming development on the site is expected to permanently impact 82 square ft of a 
Type 1 fringe within a ditch/stream floodplain. The impact is due to placement of a stormwater flared end 
section. Temporary impacts proposed total 100 sq ft, and this area will be restored post-construction. 

1 Findings must consider any TEP recommendations. 
 



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 2 

Attached Project Documents 
☐ Site Location Map    ☒ Project Plan(s)/Descriptions/Reports (specify): Application 

 
Appeals of LGU Decisions 
If you wish to appeal this decision, you must provide a written request within 30 calendar days of the date you 
received the notice. All appeals must be submitted to the Board of Water and Soil Resources Executive Director 
along with a check payable to BWSR for $500 unless the LGU has adopted a local appeal process as identified 
below. The check must be sent by mail and the written request to appeal can be submitted by mail or e-mail. 
The appeal should include a copy of this notice, name and contact information of appellant(s) and their 
representatives (if applicable), a statement clarifying the intent to appeal and supporting information as to why 
the decision is in error. Send to: 
 

Appeals & Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
Minnesota Board of Water & Soils Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
travis.germundson@state.mn.us 

 

Does the LGU have a local appeal process applicable to this decision? 
☐  Yes1   ☒  No 
1If yes, all appeals must first be considered via the local appeals process. 
 

Local Appeals Submittal Requirements (LGU must describe how to appeal, submittal requirements, fees, etc. as applicable) 
                         

 

Notice Distribution (include name) 
Required on all notices: 
☒ SWCD TEP Member: Mike Goodnature (Ramsey County)         ☒  BWSR TEP Member:  Ben Meyer     
☐ LGU TEP Member (if different than LGU contact):                                                
☒ DNR Representative: Jim Levitt                                            
☐ Watershed District or Watershed Mgmt. Org.:                                                   
☒ Applicant (notice only):        ☒ Agent/Consultant (notice only): Kevin Bohl/Sam Dollerschell (BKBM)      

 

Optional or As Applicable: 
☒ Corps of Engineers:                                                
☐ BWSR Wetland Mitigation Coordinator (required for bank plan applications only):                                                  
☐ Members of the Public (notice only):                                               ☒ Other: Mary Fitzgerald (RWMWD), John 
Ferrier (Doran Companies),                             

 

Signature:                                                Date:                                                

1/23/2023 

This notice and accompanying application materials may be sent electronically or by mail. The LGU may opt to send a 
summary of the application to members of the public upon request per 8420.0255, Subp. 3.   

mailto:travis.germundson@state.mn.us


Permit Application Coversheet

Date February 01, 2023

Project Name Ramsey Co Hodgson Rd Reconstruction Project Number 23-03

Applicant Name Josephine Lundquist, Ramsey County

This project is located along Hodgson Road from approximately Rice Street to Highway 96 in 
the City of Shoreview. The applicant is proposing to reconstruct Hodgson Road with addition 
of curb and gutter, a trail on the west side of the street, and a sidewalk on the east side. The 
total site area is 26 acres. Three above-ground infiltration basins and one underground 
infiltration system are proposed to meet stormwater treatment requirements. Pretreatment 
will include sumped inlets. A portion of the site is located within the 100-year floodplain. The 
applicant has demonstrated an increase in flood storage availability on the landscape in the 
proposed final condition. One wetland was delineated on the north end of the corridor. A 
variance request is enclosed for temporary disturbance in the upland buffer to accommodate 
construction of a stormwater pipe. Disturbed buffer areas will be restored with a native seed 
mix, and RWMWD buffer requirements are met in the proposed final condition.

Wetlands

Stormwater Management

Erosion and Sediment Control

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to handle the runoff from the site.

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water 
resources during construction.

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to protect the long term quality of 
downstream water resources.

Staff recommends approval of this permit with the special provisions and variance request 
(Rule E).

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

Water Quantity Considerations

Water Quality Considerations

Short Term

Long Term

Staff Recommendation

Property Description

Type of Development Linear

Floodplain

 Project Location Map

Project Grading Plan

Attachments:



&

&

&

&

&

&
&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

& &

&

&

&
&

&

G
rass Lake

S
u
b
w
atersh

ed

Snail Lake
Subwatershed

WestVadnaisLake
Subwatershed

Snail Lake
VADNAIS LAKE

AREA WATERSHED
MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION

SNAIL LAKE RD

G
A
LTIER ST

BRIDGEWATERDR

COUNTY ROAD F W

GALTIER
PL

RI
C
E 
ST

SN

A
IL

LA
KE

BL
V
D

M
A
C
KU

BI
N
 S
T

JANSA DR

HARB
O

R

CT

LION LN

BRIDGE ST

DENNISON AVE

LAKE
RIDGE
CT

COUNTY ROAD 96 W

H
O
D
G
SO

N
 RD

SU

ZA
N
N
E
A
V
E

RU
ST
IC
 P
L

V
IR
G
IN
IA

A
V
E

V
IRG

IN
IA

AVE

WENDY
CT

GALTIER PL

WILLOWRD

DEMAR AVE

BRIDGE ST

SUZANNEAVE

G
A
LT
IE
R 
ST

SUZ
A
NN

EAVE

G
A
LT
IE
R

ST

COUNTY ROAD 96 E

BRID

GE

CTE

HARBORLN

COLLEEN
AVE

GRAM
SI
E
RD

HAWES
AVE

DAWN AVE
RU

ST
IC
 P
L

LILACLN

DUDLEYAVE

RI
C
E

ST

MARTIN
WAY

SOUTHWOOD
DR

COLLEENAVE

LION LN

LAKERID
G
E

DR

H
A
R
BO

R
PLACE

DR

SU
C
KER

LA
KE RD

SU
C
K
ER

LAKERD

FLORAL
D
R

W

Copyright nearmap 2015

0 0.150.07
Miles

0 0.350.17
Kilometers

& Flow Arrows

& Flow_Arrows (Major)

Roads

Permits

Cities

Subwatersheds

Lakes

RWMWD Boundary

WMU Boundary

Highlighted Areas
Represent Active Permit

Wetlands
Manage A

Manage B

Manage C

Lake

Sediment Pond

Not Assessed

#23-03 Ramsey Co Hodgson Rd Reconstruction



Special Provisions

23-03

1. The applicant shall submit contact information for the trained erosion 
control coordinator responsible for implementing the SWPPP.

Wednesday, January 25, 2023 Page 1 of 1



  Memorandum 

w w w . s r f c o n s u l t i n g . c o m  
3701 Wayzata Boulevard, Suite 100 | Minneapolis, MN 55416-3791 | 763.475.0010 

Equal Employment Opportunity / Affirmative Action Employer 

SRF No. 15091 

To: Nicole Soderholm, Permit Coordinator 

Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District  

From: Bob Leba, Project Director   

Date: January 17, 2023  

Subject: Wetland Buffer Variance Request - Hodgson Road Reconstruction Project 

 

The purpose of this memo is to request a variance from the Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed 

District from the wetland buffer requirements of Rule E.  Rule E, part (d) describes that an average 

buffer width of 75 feet and minimum buffer width of 37.5 feet are required for a Manage A wetland. 

The purpose of the project is to reconstruct Hodgson Road from Highway 96 to Gramise Rd/Rice 

St.  Construction includes grading, concrete and bituminous paving, curb and gutter, storm sewer, 

watermain, and sanitary sewer construction.  Generally, the proposed cross section will include a 

three-lane section (two thru lanes and a shared center left turn lane) with a trail on the west side and 

a walk on the east side. 

A variance is requested because the construction of a storm sewer pipe from the proposed water 

quality pond (Pond A) to the existing wetland at Bridge Court will disturb the buffer area around the 

wetland.  Pond A needs to provide an outlet in order to drain treated stormwater to the natural 

receiving water.   

The disturbance of the buffer area will be temporary.  A trench will be excavated between Pond A 

and the wetland in which a concrete pipe will be installed.  Redundant perimeter controls will be 

placed to protect the wetland.  Native seed mix will be used to establish turf and erosion control 

blanket will be placed on the disturbed areas to minimize erosion.  The erosion control and turf 

establishment plan can be found on page 272 of the construction plans. 

Attached is a graphic showing Pond A, the existing wetland, and the required buffer distances.  The 

pond and proposed roadway and trail construction are outside the minimum and average buffer 

widths.  Only temporary impacts will occur within the buffer.  The construction of the stormwater 

pond and outlet are required to meet Rule C (Stormwater Management).  It is not feasible to avoid 

the temporary impacts within the buffer area because a pond and outlet pipe are required to provide 

stormwater treatment for the project. 

 

K:\Drainage\Projects\15091\Watershed Permit\Resubmittal_2_01172023 

  



bleba
Callout
Proposed Pond A

bleba
Callout
Delineated wetland boundary

bleba
Text Box
Vadnais-Snail Lakes Regional Park

bleba
Callout
Limits of existing storm sewer pipe to be removed

bleba
Callout
Limits of proposed Pond A outlet

bleba
PolyLine

bleba
PolyLine

bleba
PolyLine

bleba
PolyLine

bleba
PolyLine

bleba
PolyLine

bleba
Callout
37.5' and 75' buffer (typ.)

bleba
Text Box
Hodgson Road Reconstruction ProjectWetland Buffers1/17/20231"=100'

bleba
Callout
Construction limit

bleba
Typewritten Text
Bridge Court

bleba
Typewritten Text
Hodgson Road

bleba
Typewritten Text
Highway 96



>> >>

>>

>>



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 1 

 

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act  
Notice of Decision 

Local Government Unit:  Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD)     County: Ramsey                       
Applicant Name: Josephine Lundquist (Ramsey County)  Applicant Representative: Alan Rupnow (Ramsey 
County)      
Project Name: Hodgson Rd              LGU Project No. (if any): 22-18 WCA                                         
Date Complete Application Received by LGU: 10/18/2022                                          
Date of LGU Decision: 11/15/2022                                              
Date this Notice was Sent: 11/16/2022                                                

 

WCA Decision Type - check all that apply 
☒Wetland Boundary/Type      ☐Sequencing       ☐Replacement Plan           ☐Bank Plan (not credit 

purchase)                                  
☐No-Loss (8420.0415)                                                                   ☐Exemption (8420.0420) 

   Part: ☐ A ☐ B  ☐ C ☐ D ☐ E  ☐ F  ☐ G  ☐ H                             Subpart: ☐ 2 ☐ 3 ☐ 4 ☐ 5  ☐ 6 ☐ 7  ☐ 8 ☐ 9 
 

Replacement Plan Impacts (replacement plan decisions only) 
Total WCA Wetland Impact Area:                                                                
Wetland Replacement Type:    ☐  Project Specific Credits:                                               
                                                       ☐  Bank Credits:                                                   
Bank Account Number(s):                                                               

 

Technical Evaluation Panel Findings and Recommendations (attach if any) 
☒ Approve    ☐  Approve w/Conditions     ☐ Deny      ☒  No TEP Recommendation 
 
Nicole Soderholm (RWMWD- LGU), Mary Fitzgerald (RWMWD), and Ben Meyer (BWSR) met with Al 
Rupnow onsite for a field review on 11/2/22. No changes were requested to the delineation report based 
on field observations. 
  

 

LGU Decision 
☐  Approved with Conditions (specify below)1                  ☒  Approved1                                        ☐  Denied 
    List Conditions:   

Decision-Maker for this Application: ☒ Staff   ☐ Governing Board/Council  ☐ Other:               
 

Decision is valid for: ☒ 5 years (default)   ☐ Other (specify):                           
 

1 Wetland Replacement Plan approval is not valid until BWSR confirms the withdrawal of any required wetland bank credits. For project-
specific replacement a financial assurance per MN Rule 8420.0522, Subp. 9 and evidence that all required forms have been recorded on 
the title of the property on which the replacement wetland is located must be provided to the LGU for the approval to be valid. 
 

LGU Findings – Attach document(s) and/or insert narrative providing the basis for the LGU decision1.  



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 2 

☐ Attachment(s) (specify):  
☒ Summary: Field observations were consistent with the delineation report submitted. 

1 Findings must consider any TEP recommendations. 
 

Attached Project Documents 
☒ Site Location Map    ☐ Project Plan(s)/Descriptions/Reports (specify):  

 
Appeals of LGU Decisions 
If you wish to appeal this decision, you must provide a written request within 30 calendar days of the date you 
received the notice. All appeals must be submitted to the Board of Water and Soil Resources Executive Director 
along with a check payable to BWSR for $500 unless the LGU has adopted a local appeal process as identified 
below. The check must be sent by mail and the written request to appeal can be submitted by mail or e-mail. 
The appeal should include a copy of this notice, name and contact information of appellant(s) and their 
representatives (if applicable), a statement clarifying the intent to appeal and supporting information as to why 
the decision is in error. Send to: 
 

Appeals & Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
Minnesota Board of Water & Soils Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
travis.germundson@state.mn.us 

 

Does the LGU have a local appeal process applicable to this decision? 
☐  Yes1   ☒  No 
1If yes, all appeals must first be considered via the local appeals process. 
 

Local Appeals Submittal Requirements (LGU must describe how to appeal, submittal requirements, fees, etc. as applicable) 
                         

 

Notice Distribution (include name) 
Required on all notices: 
☒ SWCD TEP Member: Mike Goodnature (Ramsey County)         ☒  BWSR TEP Member:  Ben Meyer     
☐ LGU TEP Member (if different than LGU contact):                                                
☒ DNR Representative: Jim Levitt                                            
☐ Watershed District or Watershed Mgmt. Org.:                                                   
☒ Applicant (notice only):        ☐ Agent/Consultant (notice only):                                                        

 

Optional or As Applicable: 
☒ Corps of Engineers:                                                
☐ BWSR Wetland Mitigation Coordinator (required for bank plan applications only):                                                  
☐ Members of the Public (notice only):                                               ☒ Other: Mary Fitzgerald (RWMWD)                                   
       

 

Signature:                                                Date:                                                

11/16/2022 

This notice and accompanying application materials may be sent electronically or by mail. The LGU may opt to send a 
summary of the application to members of the public upon request per 8420.0255, Subp. 3.   

mailto:travis.germundson@state.mn.us


Permit Application Coversheet

Date February 01, 2023

Project Name Dunkin Donuts Project Number 23-04

Applicant Name Stuart Tapper, NSP PP Properties, LLC

This project is located on the northwest corner of 11th Avenue and McKnight Road North in 
the City of North St. Paul. The applicant is proposing a redevelopment to an existing building 
and adjacent parking to accommodate a Dunkin Donuts shop with drive-through lane. The 
proposed construction activity will include the drive-through addition and adjustment of 
parking lot islands and striping. The total site area is 0.45 acre and triggers a District permit 
due to floodplain encroachment on the site. The applicant has demonstrated no net fill in the 
floodplain to maintain existing flood storage on the landscape. The existing building does not 
meet District freeboard requirements, so an addition would require a variance request 
(enclosed). The proposed addition for the drive-through does not change or worsen existing 
freeboard for low openings, which is 1.04' above the 100-year floodplain.

Wetlands

Stormwater Management

Erosion and Sediment Control

The proposed grading plan results in no net loss of flood storage on the landscape.

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water 
resources during construction.

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to protect the long term quality of 
downstream water resources.

Staff recommends approval of this permit with the special provisions and variance request 
(Rule D).

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

Water Quantity Considerations

Water Quality Considerations

Short Term

Long Term

Staff Recommendation

Property Description

Type of Development Commercial/Retail

Floodplain

 Project Location Map

Project Grading Plan

Attachments:



Kohlman Creek
Subwatershed

M
C
KN

IG
H
T
RD

M
C
KN

IG
H
T
RD

12TH AVE E

11TH AVE E

M
C
KN

IG
H
T 
RD

Copyright nearmap 2015

0 0.020.01
Miles

0 0.060.03
Kilometers

& Flow Arrows

Roads

Permits

Cities

Subwatersheds

ParcelsRamsey

RWMWD Boundary

Highlighted Areas
Represent Active Permit

Wetlands
Manage A

Manage B

Manage C

Lake

Sediment Pond

Not Assessed

#23-04  Dunkin Donuts

PCU Pond



Special Provisions

23-04

1. The applicant shall submit the $900 escrow fee.

2. The applicant shall add notes to the plans:
   A. Notify Nicole Soderholm, Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District, 
at 651-792-7976 prior to beginning construction activity for an initial erosion 
control walk-through.
   B. The specified erosion and sediment control practices are the minimum. 
Additional practices may be required during the course of construction.

3. The applicant shall include a construction detail for the proposed bioroll.

4. The applicant shall submit the final, signed plans set.

5. The applicant shall submit contact information for the erosion control 
coordinator responsible for implementing the erosion control plan.

Thursday, January 26, 2023 Page 1 of 1





MEMORANDUM

TBPLS Firm No. 10074302

Date: January 20, 2023

Re: Dunkin Donuts, North St. Paul – Variance Request
File 0040116.00

To: Nicole Soderholm, Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District

From: Gretchen Schroeder, P.E.

The proposed redevelopment requests a variance to Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed
District’s Rule D to allow an addition onto an existing building with a freeboard of 1 foot above the
100-year floodplain. While the proposed redevelopment intends to meet the requirements of the
Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD) rules, the existing building does not
provide 2-foot freeboard above the HWL.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed Dunkin Donuts redevelopment site is located at the NW intersection of McKnight
Road N and 11th Avenue at the existing Polar Plaza mall. The proposed redevelopment will include a
small 4.8’ building bump-out on the existing building, drive-through lane, and adjustment of the
existing parking lot striping and islands. The proposed development will impact 0.45 acres (19,546
SF).

Per Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed (RWMWD) modeling, the 100-year floodplain on the
site is 937.86. RWMWD requires existing habitable buildings to have a minimum low opening of 2
feet above the 100-year flood elevation of waterbodies with piped outlets per Rule D Flood Control.

FREEBOARD VARIANCE REQUEST

The existing building’s minimum low opening is 938.9. The proposed 48 sq. ft. addition to the
existing building will maintain the existing finished floor which is 1.04’ above the 100-yr floodplain.
While the proposed redevelopment is not proposing any new openings, the low openings of the
existing building do not meet the 2’ freeboard requirement. The proposed redevelopment project
aims to minimize site disturbance in the floodplain and to existing tenants by maintaining the
existing building with a small building expansion. A variance is requested to allow for the
continuation of the existing freeboard conditions on the site.



Permit Application Coversheet

Date February 01, 2023

Project Name MnDOT I-94 Maintenance & Safety Improveme Project Number 23-05

Applicant Name Bryce Fossand, MnDOT

This project is located along I-94 from approximately Century Avenue eastward out of 
RWMWD to TH 95. The applicant is proposing to complete pavement resurfacing, guardrail, 
noise wall, signals/lighting, and ADA improvements. The majority of the project is pavement 
rehabilitation and is not considered fully reconstructed. The total site area is 8.3 acres. Some 
minor grading and pipe replacement will trigger District Rule C for stormwater management. 
Three filtration ditch blocks are proposed to meet stormwater treatment requirements. 
Filtration is being proposed due to contaminated soils. The primary pipe work is proposed to 
take place at Battle Creek Lake. In addition to replacement and upsizing of the existing pipe 
(the outlet from Tanners Lake) a second parallel pipe is proposed which will be plugged 
following construction to allow for future conveyance and flood control possibilities. This 
effort has been a collaboration between MnDOT, the City of Oakdale, Gold Line, and RWMWD. 
The new pipes will remain restricted until such a time that RWMWD designs and approves a 
project(s) that would allow for utilization of this extra conveyance without adversely affecting 
properties downstream. The applicant has submitted rate control calculations for the 
proposed condition to demonstrate requirements are met until such a time that future work 
may take place. This pipe work will require activity in the floodplain and wetland buffer. The 
applicant has submitted a variance request for temporary buffer impacts and floodplain 
calculations to ensure no net loss of flood storage on the landscape. Disturbed buffer areas 
will be restored with a native seed mix. A DNR Public Waters permit will be required for work 
in Battle Creek Lake to install the pipe outfalls.

Wetlands

Stormwater Management

Erosion and Sediment Control

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to handle the runoff from the site.

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water 
resources during construction.

The proposed stormwater management plan is sufficient to protect the long term quality of 
downstream water resources.

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

Water Quantity Considerations

Water Quality Considerations

Short Term

Long Term

Staff Recommendation

Property Description

Type of Development Linear

Floodplain



Staff recommends approval of this permit with the special provisions and variance request 
(Rule E).

Staff Recommendation

 Project Location Map

Project Grading Plan

Attachments:



&

&

& &

&

&

&
&

&

&

&

& &

&&

&

& &

&
&

&
&

&

&

&
&

&
&

&&

&

&

&&

&

&&
& &

&

&
&

&
&

&
&

&

&
&

&

&&

&

&
&

&

&

&

&

&

& &

&

& &

&

&&

&

&

&

&
&

&
&

&

&

&

&

&
&

&
&

&

&
&

&&
&

&

&

&

&

&&

&

&

&

&&

&

&

&

&

&

&&

&
&

& &&

&

&

&

& &

&
&

&
&

&

Battle
Creek
Subwatershed

Battle
Creek Lake

Subwatershed

Tanners
Lake (North)
Subwatershed

Tanners Lake
(South)
Subwatershed

Battle
Creek
Lake

Tanners
Lake

SOUTH
WASHINGTON
WATERSHED

DISTRICT

RAMSEY-WASHINGTON
METRO WATERSHED

DISTRICT

Copyright nearmap 2015

0 0.30.15
Miles

0 10.5
Kilometers

& Flow Arrows

& Flow_Arrows (Major)

Roads

Permits

Cities

Subwatersheds

Lakes

RWMWD Boundary

WMU Boundary

Highlighted Areas
Represent Active Permit

Wetlands
Manage A

Manage B

Manage C

Lake

Sediment Pond

Not Assessed

#23-05 MnDOT I-94 Maintenance & Safety Improvements

94

694

494



Special Provisions

23-05

1. The applicant shall add notes to the plans:
   A. Notify Nicole Soderholm, Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District, 
at 651-792-7976 prior to beginning construction activity in order to schedule 
an initial SWPPP inspection.
   B. Notify Nicole Soderholm, Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District, 
at 651-792-7976 at least 48 hours prior to construction of the filtration ditch 
blocks.
   C. The specified erosion and sediment control practices are the minimum. 
Additional practices may be required during the course of construction.

2. The applicant shall submit the final, signed plans set including erosion and 
sediment control installation details.

3. The applicant shall submit contact information for the trained erosion 
control coordinator responsible for implementing the SWPPP.

4. The applicant shall submit a copy of the approved Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency's NPDES Construction Permit coverage for the project.

Thursday, January 26, 2023 Page 1 of 1













Permit Application Coversheet

Date February 01, 2023

Project Name Xcel Energy Roseville 0802 Line Rebuild Project Number 23-06

Applicant Name Brian Black, Xcel Energy

This project is located along the southeast side of Lake Owasso in the City of Roseville. The 
applicant is proposing to reconstruct a 1.6-mile portion of an existing transmission line. Due 
to the location of the existing line, construction activity is proposed in wetland buffer and 
floodplain areas. Most disturbance is proposed in the winter during frozen ground conditions 
to minimize impact to vegetation. A variance request is enclosed for temporary buffer 
disturbance, and areas will be restored with a native seed mix where vegetation is damaged 
to pre-project conditions. A Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) utility exemption application 
was approved on 1/25/23 (#23-04 WCA) for replacement of an existing power pole structure 
in a wetland. While work is taking place in the 100-year floodplain, no net fill is proposed to 
maintain existing flood storage on the landscape. Due to the nature of the proposed 
construction activity, permanent stormwater management (Rule C) is not required. The total 
site area is approximately 1 acre.

Wetlands

Stormwater Management

Erosion and Sediment Control

The proposed construction activity will result in no net loss of flood storage on the landscape.

The proposed erosion and sediment control plan is sufficient to protect downstream water 
resources during construction.

There are no long term water quality considerations.

Staff recommends approval of this permit with the special provisions and variance request 
(Rule E).

Watershed District Policies or Standards Involved:

Water Quantity Considerations

Water Quality Considerations

Short Term

Long Term

Staff Recommendation

Property Description

Type of Development Utility Maintenance

Floodplain

 Project Location Map

Project Grading Plan

Attachments:



&

&

&&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

& &
&

&&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&

&
&

&

&

&

&

&

&
&

Lake Owasso
Subwatershed

Bennett Lake
Subwatershed

Lake
Emily Subwatershed

Lake Owasso

Lake Owasso

Bennett
Lake

Lake
Emily

RICE
CREEK

WATERSHED
DISTRICT

RAMSEY-WASHINGTON
METRO WATERSHED

DISTRICT

MAPLE
LN

COUNTY ROAD D W

OWASSO BLVD
W

COUNTY ROAD C W

ROSE PL

EM
M
ER
T

ST

D
A
LE
 S
T 
N

O
W
A
SS
O
BL
V
D
W

GLEN PAUL
CT

HIG

H
PO

IN
TE

C
RV

V
IC
TO

RI
A
 S
T 
N

RI
C
H
M
O
N
D

A
V
E

O
XF
O
RD

ST
 N

W
EW

ER
S

RD

TRANSITAVE

IONA LN

COUNTY ROAD
C2 W

W
ES
TE
RN

 A
V
E 
N

SO
UT
H 
O
W
AS
SO
 BL
VD
 W

EDGEWATERAVE

COUNTY ROAD
C2 W

TERRACE DR

OWASSOHILLS

D
R

WOODHILL
DR

LYDIA
AVE W

BRO
O
KS

A
V
E
W

ROSE
PL

C
O
H
A
N
SE
Y 
ST

OAKCREST
AVE

C
H
A
TS
W
O
RT
H
 S
T 
N

V
IV
IA
N
 A
V
E

KE
N
T

ST

G
A
LT
IE
R 
ST

M
AC

KUB
IN

ST

BROOKS
AV
EW

TRANSITAVE

HE
IN
EL
 D
R

KENTST

SA
ND

Y

HO
O
K
DR

MAPLE
LANE
CT

BRENNER AVE

LA
KE
V
IE
W
 A
V
E

IREN
EC
IR

A
V
O
N

ST
 N

FI
SK
 S
T

SEXTANT
AVE W

A
G
LE
N
 S
T

O
XF
O
RD

 S
T 
N

G
A
LTIER

C
IRM

A
TI
LD

A
ST

MILLWOOD AVE

TRANSIT
AVE

G
RO

TT
O

ST
 N

A
V
O
N
 S
T

N

A
G
LE
N
 S
T

TER
RA
CE

DR

WHEAT
ONAVE

A
LA

D
D
IN
 S
T

SEXTANT
AVE W

ORCHARD
LN

WOODLYNN
AVE

H
A
FN

ER
 C
T

TIMBER LN

LY
D
IA
 D
R

IR
EN

E 
ST

COBB RD

GLENHILL RD

SEXTANT AVE W

LITTLEBAYRD

W
ES
TW
O

OD

VL
G

WOODHILL DR

M
A
RI
O
N
 S
T

A
V
O
N
ST

N

V
IR
G
IN
IA
 A
V
E

FA
RR

IN
G
TO

N
 S
T

CE
NTENNIALDR

M
A
TI
LD

A
 S
T

JUDITH AVE

M
A
RI
O
N
 S
T

PA
RK

O
V
ER

LO
O
K
D
R

Copyright nearmap 2015

0 0.20.1
Miles

0 0.70.35
Kilometers

& Flow Arrows

& Flow_Arrows (Major)

Roads

Permits

Cities

Subwatersheds

Lakes

RWMWD Boundary

WMU Boundary

Highlighted Areas
Represent Active Permit

Wetlands
Manage A

Manage B

Manage C

Lake

Sediment Pond

Not Assessed

#23-06  Xcel Energy Roseville 0802 Line Rebuild



Special Provisions

23-06

1. The applicant shall submit the final, signed plans set including erosion 
control plan.

2. The applicant shall submit a copy of the approved Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency's NPDES Construction Permit coverage for the project.

Thursday, January 26, 2023 Page 1 of 1



 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: January 11, 2023 

 
Re: Line 0802 STR 59-85 Rebuild Project Variance Request 

 
To: Ramsey Washington Metro Watershed District  

From: Xcel Energy 

Introduction 
The proposed Line 0802 Rebuild project is located in Ramsey County, Minnesota, in the city of 
Roseville. The project is linear in nature within transmission line (0802) ROW from 
Structure 59 to Structure 85, adjacent to Owasso Blvd and east of Lake Owasso. 

 
Section Township Range 
1, 2, 11 T29N R23W 

Latitude and Longitude Points (Decimal) 
Latitude 45.026065 

Longitude -93.12812 
 

Xcel Energy’s Line 0802 Structure 59 to 85 Rebuild Project consists of 
reconstruction along a 1.6-mile portion of an existing 69kV transmission line 
corridor.  Construction activities include installation of temporary erosion and 
sediment control BMPs, construction matting for site access and construction, 
replacement of single pole structures on existing foundations, one new drilled 
pier foundation, and site restoration. 

 
Variance Request 
A variance is requested for the Line 0802 Rebuild Project pertaining to Rule E: Wetland 
Management as described below. 

 
District rules require that buffer zones around existing wetlands, lakes, and streams be 
preserved during construction.  With the nature of linear projects, this is not always 
feasible because of the available space for construction and location of existing 
transmission structures.  In locations where buffer zones cannot be feasibly preserved, 
construction matting will be used to minimize disturbance and redundant sediment 
controls will be implemented.   
 
Wetland disturbance will be minimized by use of construction matting and timing of 
the project during frozen conditions.  Construction is scheduled to begin in February 
and wrap up in May with final restoration activities during May & June.  In areas 
where wetlands are disturbed temporarily, they will be stabilized and restored to 
preconstruction conditions. 



"/

"/
"/

"/

!>

!>

!>

MINIMIZE DISTURBANCE IN WETLANDS.**WHEN TRAVERSING WETLANDS,MINIMIZE DISTURBANCE USING ICE ROADS, WETLAND MATTING, OR APPROVED ALTERNATIVE.

OM CHURCH PARKING LOT. 

TRUCTION. 

AVOID BIKE PATH WITH WETLAND MATTING

PROVIDE TRAIL SIGNS DURING CONSTRUCTION. 

!

!

!!

!

County Road C West

Fis
k S

tre
et 

No
rth

Vi
c to

ria
St

re
et

No
r th

Terrace Drive West

GVWX23

GVWX52

Lake Owasso

0802-79

0802-80

0802-81-DE0802-82

0802-83-DE

938

934
932

930

926

924
922

914
912
910
908

900

898
896
894

892
890

93
6

928

920

916

902

888

92
4

92
2

91
6

91
4

91
0

90
8

90
4

90
2

90
0

89
8

920

918

912

906

90
2

90
0

89
8

89
6

89
4

89
2

89
0

88
8

906 904

906

904

902

894

892

890

888

890
888

94
0

918

906

904

886

88
6

940

934

918

918

896

89
0

888

888

888

886

886

88
6

888

888

888

BMPs are subject to field verification of location and extent.
Place SCL on the downslope side of all disturbed areas, where
applicable. All disturbed areas will be revegetated. Remove
temproary BMPs after disturbed areas have been stabilized.

Temporary access roads and work areas
will be matted where needed  to minimize
soil disturbance. All areas in lowlands
and wetlands will be matted.

Temporary inlet protection to be 
provided where stormwater inlets 
are located downslope of 
construction activites.

PATH: \\MSPE-GIS-FILE\GISPROJ\XCEL\10340540_LINE0802\7.2_WIP\MAP_DOCS\WORKING\ECP_11X17_59TO85.MXD  -  USER: MRYAN  -  DATE: 1/13/2023

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

PAGE 6 OF 7

LINE 0802
STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

O
0 100Feet

Seed and stabilize all disturbed
areas as described in the Project
SWPPP report.

! Proposed Pole

Access Road

Disturbance Area*

Access Matting

Construction Matting

!> Inlet Protection

"/ Vehicle Tracking Control

Perimeter Control

SCL

Redundant (2x) SCL

Zone AE Floodplain

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Riverine

PWI Waterbody

PWI Stream

Contour Type

10-Foot

2-Foot

* Disturbance area shown is approximate. Assume 100' x 40' work area.

Notify Nicole Soderholm, Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District,
at 651-792-7976 prior to beginning any and all construction activity for an
initial SWPPP inspection.

The specified erosion and sediment control practices are the minimum.
Additional practices may be required during the course of construction.



"/

"/

"/

!>

!>

PROPOSE 14' WIDE ACCESS ROAD FROM CHURCH PARKING LOT. 
PROVIDE TRAIL SIGNS DURING CONSTRUCTION. 

!

!

!

County Road C
West

Vi
cto

ria
St

re
et

N o
rth

GVWX23

Bennett Lake

0802-83-DE

0802-84-DE

0802-85

926

900

898896894892
890

888

92
0

91
8

91
6

91
4

922

904

924

906

924

92
2

920

910

916
912

904
902

914

906

900

89
8

89
6

89
4

89
2

89
0

88
8

910

908
90
6

904

916
914

914

91
2

91
0

924922

92
4

92
2

898

896

918

916

912

910

908

902

926 91
8

908

90
2

918

900

89
6

89
6

894

BMPs are subject to field verification of location and extent.
Place SCL on the downslope side of all disturbed areas, where
applicable. All disturbed areas will be revegetated. Remove
temproary BMPs after disturbed areas have been stabilized.

Temporary access roads and work areas
will be matted where needed  to minimize
soil disturbance. All areas in lowlands
and wetlands will be matted.

Temporary inlet protection to be 
provided where stormwater inlets 
are located downslope of 
construction activites.

PATH: \\MSPE-GIS-FILE\GISPROJ\XCEL\10340540_LINE0802\7.2_WIP\MAP_DOCS\WORKING\ECP_11X17_59TO85.MXD  -  USER: MRYAN  -  DATE: 1/13/2023

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

PAGE 7 OF 7

LINE 0802
STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

O
0 100Feet

Seed and stabilize all disturbed
areas as described in the Project
SWPPP report.

! Proposed Pole

Access Road

Disturbance Area*

Access Matting

Construction Matting

!> Inlet Protection

"/ Vehicle Tracking Control

Perimeter Control

SCL

Redundant (2x) SCL

Zone AE Floodplain

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Riverine

PWI Waterbody

PWI Stream

Contour Type

10-Foot

2-Foot

* Disturbance area shown is approximate. Assume 100' x 40' work area.

Notify Nicole Soderholm, Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District,
at 651-792-7976 prior to beginning any and all construction activity for an
initial SWPPP inspection.

The specified erosion and sediment control practices are the minimum.
Additional practices may be required during the course of construction.



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 1 

 

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act  
Notice of Decision 

Local Government Unit:  Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District (RWMWD)     County: Ramsey                       
Applicant Name: Brian Sullivan (Xcel Energy)  Applicant Representative: Ellen Heine (Xcel Energy)      
Project Name: Xcel Roseville Line 0802 Exemption               LGU Project No. (if any): 23-04 WCA                                       
  
Date Complete Application Received by LGU: 1/23/2023                                          
Date of LGU Decision: 1/25/2023                                              
Date this Notice was Sent: 1/25/2023                                                

 

WCA Decision Type - check all that apply 
☐Wetland Boundary/Type      ☐Sequencing       ☐Replacement Plan           ☐Bank Plan (not credit 

purchase)                                  
☐No-Loss (8420.0415)                                                                   ☒Exemption (8420.0420) 

   Part: ☐ A ☐ B  ☐ C ☐ D ☐ E  ☐ F  ☐ G  ☐ H                            Subpart: ☐ 2 ☐ 3 ☐ 4 ☐ 5  ☒ 6 ☐ 7  ☐ 8 ☐ 9 
 

Replacement Plan Impacts (replacement plan decisions only) 
Total WCA Wetland Impact Area:                                                                
Wetland Replacement Type:    ☐  Project Specific Credits:                                               
                                                       ☐  Bank Credits:                                                   
Bank Account Number(s):                                                               

 

Technical Evaluation Panel Findings and Recommendations (attach if any) 
☐ Approve    ☐  Approve w/Conditions     ☐ Deny      ☒  No TEP Recommendation 
 

 

LGU Decision 
☐  Approved with Conditions (specify below)1                  ☒  Approved1                                        ☐  Denied 
    List Conditions:   
 

Decision-Maker for this Application: ☒ Staff   ☐ Governing Board/Council  ☐ Other:               
 

Decision is valid for: ☒ 5 years (default)   ☐ Other (specify):                           
 

1 Wetland Replacement Plan approval is not valid until BWSR confirms the withdrawal of any required wetland bank credits. For project-
specific replacement a financial assurance per MN Rule 8420.0522, Subp. 9 and evidence that all required forms have been recorded on 
the title of the property on which the replacement wetland is located must be provided to the LGU for the approval to be valid. 
 

LGU Findings – Attach document(s) and/or insert narrative providing the basis for the LGU decision1.  
☐ Attachment(s) (specify):  
☒ Summary: Impacts associated with a power pole structure replacement have been minimized to the 
extent possible and are less than once acre. The nature of the activity falls under the utility exemption. 

1 Findings must consider any TEP recommendations. 
 

Attached Project Documents 



BWSR NOD Form – November 5, 2019 2 

☐ Site Location Map    ☒ Project Plan(s)/Descriptions/Reports (specify): Application 

 
Appeals of LGU Decisions 
If you wish to appeal this decision, you must provide a written request within 30 calendar days of the date you 
received the notice. All appeals must be submitted to the Board of Water and Soil Resources Executive Director 
along with a check payable to BWSR for $500 unless the LGU has adopted a local appeal process as identified 
below. The check must be sent by mail and the written request to appeal can be submitted by mail or e-mail. 
The appeal should include a copy of this notice, name and contact information of appellant(s) and their 
representatives (if applicable), a statement clarifying the intent to appeal and supporting information as to why 
the decision is in error. Send to: 
 

Appeals & Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
Minnesota Board of Water & Soils Resources 
520 Lafayette Road North 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
travis.germundson@state.mn.us 

 

Does the LGU have a local appeal process applicable to this decision? 
☐  Yes1   ☒  No 
1If yes, all appeals must first be considered via the local appeals process. 
 

Local Appeals Submittal Requirements (LGU must describe how to appeal, submittal requirements, fees, etc. as applicable) 
                         

 

Notice Distribution (include name) 
Required on all notices: 
☒ SWCD TEP Member: Mike Goodnature (Ramsey County)         ☒  BWSR TEP Member:  Ben Meyer     
☐ LGU TEP Member (if different than LGU contact):                                                
☒ DNR Representative: Jim Levitt                                            
☐ Watershed District or Watershed Mgmt. Org.:                                                   
☒ Applicant (notice only):        ☐ Agent/Consultant (notice only):                                                        

 

Optional or As Applicable: 
☒ Corps of Engineers:                                                
☐ BWSR Wetland Mitigation Coordinator (required for bank plan applications only):                                                  
☐ Members of the Public (notice only):                                               ☒ Other: Mary Fitzgerald (RWMWD), Anna 
Kadrie/Brian Black (Xcel Energy)                             

 

Signature:                                                Date:                                                

1/25/2023 

This notice and accompanying application materials may be sent electronically or by mail. The LGU may opt to send a 
summary of the application to members of the public upon request per 8420.0255, Subp. 3.   

mailto:travis.germundson@state.mn.us


 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  February 1st, 2023 
 
To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
 
From:  Nicole Soderholm, Permit Coordinator 
  Mary Fitzgerald, District Inspector 
    
Subject: January Enforcement Action Report 
 
 
During January 2023: 
 
Number of Violations:      0 
 
 
Activities and Coordination Meetings:  
 
Active permit site monitoring and inspections, permitting assistance to private 
developers and public entities, miscellaneous resident inquiries, Wetland 
Conservation Act (WCA) administration/procedures, new permit review with Barr 
Engineering, TAC rule change process, winter construction inspections presentation 
by Dwayne Stenlund, active permit discussion with City of Woodbury, DEI (Diversity 
Equity & Inclusion) workgroup meeting, District program display meeting with Lauren, 
WCA Annual report submittal 
 
 
Project Updates: 
 
Similar to the month of December, January has been quiet amongst construction 
sites. An unseasonal rain event occurred on January 15-16th – which prompted staff 
to conduct site monitoring throughout the District the following days. Staff found 
most sites to be frozen and compliant. Staff observed quite a bit of earth-moving 
activity at site #22-32 (Oakdale Elementary Demolition), and notified the site 
contacts that they needed to scrape tracked sediment from paved surfaces and 
install anti-tracking devices to prevent turbid snow melt from leaving the site.  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Site #20-13 (Menards, Maplewood) was discovered to be storing dirty plowed snow in 
their new filtration basin. Staff communicated to the site contacts that the plowed 
snow has a high concentration of sediment, deicers and other debris that could 
cause drainage issues to the basin, and to correct plowing and snow storage 
operations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Single Lot Residential Permits Approved by Staff: 
 
None 
 
Permits Closed: 
 
None 
 



************ 
Stewardship 

Grant 
Program 

************ 



Stewardship Grant Program Budget Status Update 
 

February 1, 2023 

 
Commercial, School, 

Government, Church, 
Associations, etc.  

Coverage Number of Projects: 1 Funds Allocated 

 
Habitat Restoration 

 

50% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max 0 $0 

Shoreland Restoration (below 
100-year flood elevation 

w/actively eroding banks) 

100% Cost Share 
$100,000 Max 0 $0 

 
Priority Area Projects  

 

100% Cost Share 
$100,000 Max 

1 
 $61,000* 

 
Non-Priority Area Projects 

  

75% Cost Share 
$50,000 Max 0 $0 

Public Art 
($50,000 Reserved) 

50% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max/Project 0 $0 

Aquatic Veg Harvest/LVMP 
Development 

50% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max 0 $0 

Enhanced Street Sweeping 
($128,000 Reserved) 

Grant Recipients and 
Amounts to be Set at Future 

Meeting 
0 $0 

    
 

Maintenance 
 

50% Cost Share 
$7,500 Max for 5 Years 63 $43,500 

Consultant Fees   $0 

 
Total Allocated 

 
  $43,500 

*includes funds to be approved at the February 1 board meeting. 
2023 Stewardship Grant Program Budget 

 Budget $1,128,000 
Total Funds Allocated $104,500 

Total Available Funds $1,023,500 
 

 
Homeowner 

 
Coverage Number of Projects: 0 Funds Allocated 

Habitat Restoration and rain 
garden w/o hard surface 

drainage 

50% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max 0 $0 

Rain garden w/hard surface 
drainage, pervious pavement, 

green roof 

75% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max 0 $0 

Master Water Steward Project 100% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max 0 $0 

Shoreland Restoration  100% Cost Share 
$15,000 Max 0 $0 



************ 
New Reports/ 
Presentations
************ 



 
 

 

Barr Engineering Co.   4300 MarketPointe Drive, Suite 200, Minneapolis, MN 55435   952.832.2600  www.barr.com 

Project Work Plan 
Original Date:  January 2022 

Updated: January 2022 

Project: South RWMWD evaluation of flood control options/Resiliency study for Battle Creek and Fish 
Creek drainage areas 

 Project #23-62-1200.23-001 

Project team 

District staff:  Project manager: Tina Carstens 
Barr staff:  Principal in charge:  Brandon Barnes, PE 
 Project manager:  Jay Hawley 
 Project team:    Lulu Fang 

Scope of work 
The purpose of this project is to evaluate system scale modifications to reduce flood risk within the 
portion of the RWMWD that was not evaluated as part of the Beltline Resiliency Evaluation. This portion of 
the watershed includes the Tanners Lake, Battle Creek Lake, Battle Creek, Carver Lake, Fish Creek, and 
Snake Creek subwatersheds. The evaluation will identify modifications to the drainage system reduce 
flood risk to habitable structures located within the 100-year floodplain of District managed water bodies, 
including the evaluation of actively managing outlet control structures on Tanners Lake, Battle Creek Lake, 
and Carver Lake. This evaluation will allow RWMWD to identify potential system-wide strategies for 
mitigating flood-risk consistent with the portion of the District that is tributary to the Beltline, which was 
studied as part of the Beltline Resiliency Evaluation.  

Phase A includes evaluating the potential for increasing floodplain storage north of 15th Street N in 
Oakdale, modifications to the Tanners Lake and Battle Creek Lake outlet control structures, modifications 
to overland flow paths through Landfall, increasing conveyance capacity below I94, and identifying 
opportunities for floodplain storage within the Battle Creek subwatershed.  

Phase B includes identification of opportunities for floodplain storage upstream of Carver Lake, modifying 
operation of existing pumped outlets, actively managing the Carver Lake outlet control structure, and 
improvements to conveyance capacity near I-494.   

• Phase A Tanners Lake, Battle Creek Lake, and Battle Creek subwatersheds: Phase A includes 
evaluating system modifications, including active management of the Tanners Lake and Battle 
Creek Lake outlet control structures.  

• Phase B Carver Lake, Fish Creek, and Snake Creek: Phase B includes evaluation of system 
modifications in the Carver Lake, Fish Creek, and Snake Creek subwatersheds including active 
management of the Carver Lake outlet control structure.  

The following are proposed tasks for each Phase. 



 
Tina Carstens 
South RWMWD evaluation of flood control options/Resiliency study for Battle Creek and Fish Creek drainage areas 
Page 2 
 
 
Task 1: Identify flood-risk management elevations. This task involves determining the acceptable limits 
for the 100-year water surface elevation. LiDAR will be used to estimate the elevation of low structure 
adjacent to each water body within the subwatershed. We assume that any flood-risk mitigation strategy 
must either meet the District’s freeboard requirement or the 100-year water surface elevation must not 
increase above the current elevation.  

Task 2: Develop an inventory of stormwater infrastructure that may be modified. This task involves 
identification of stormwater infrastructure within each subwatershed that might be modified to mitigate 
impacts to the 100-year water surface elevation. We assume that active management (i.e., adjusting the 
outlet during a rainfall event) will only be used for outlet structures on Tanners Lake, Battle Creek Lake, 
and Carver Lake, and that other stormwater infrastructure will not be actively managed.  

Task 3: Identify flood-risk mitigation modifications for each Phase of the study. We will identify system-
modifications required to mitigate flood-risk. Initially system-modifications will be focused on identifying 
ways to reduce the 100-year water surface elevation without considering downstream impacts (which will 
be evaluated in Task 4). System modifications evaluated may include outlet modifications, rerouting local 
storm sewer, or identifying locations for upstream storage within the watershed.  

Task 4: Evaluation and mitigation of downstream impacts. Modifications to downstream culverts, 
overflows, and lake outlet structures will be evaluated to mitigate downstream impacts. The goal will be to 
reduce downstream 100-year water surface elevations to below elevations identified in Task 1. The 100-
year 4-day rainfall event will be used to develop potential management plans for proposed actively 
managed outlets. 

Task 5: Document methodology and results.  This task includes preparation of an addendum to the 
Beltline Resiliency Report summarizing potential system modifications and resulting 100-year water 
surface elevations. Results for each phase will be used to update the GIS web map that was developed as 
part of the Beltline Resiliency Study. This task also includes two progress meeting with RWMWD staff as 
well as a presentation to the board.  
Budget 
The approved budget is $150,000. 

Schedule 
We propose the following schedule, milestones, and deliverables: 

 project start: March 2023 
 Task 1 complete: April 2023 
 Task 2 complete: May 2023 
 Task 3 complete: September 2023 
 Task 4 complete: November 2023 
 Task 5 complete: December 2023 



 
Tina Carstens 
South RWMWD evaluation of flood control options/Resiliency study for Battle Creek and Fish Creek drainage areas 
Page 3 
 
 

Project tracking 
Project milestones 

Milestone Estimated date Actual date 

Project start March 2023  

Task 1: Identify flood-risk management elevations April 2023  

Task 2: Inventory stormwater management infrastructure May 2023  

Task 3: Identify flood-risk management modifications September 2023  

Task 4: Mitigate downstream impacts November 2023  

Task 5: Documentation  December 2023  

Monthly updates 

Month Budget spent 
$ / % 

March 2023 
  

April 2023 
  

May 2023 
  

June 2023  

 



 
 

************ 
Administrator’s  

Report 
 
 
 

************ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MEMO 

TO:  Board of Managers and Staff 

FROM:  Tina Carstens, Administrator 
 

SUBJECT:  January Administrator's Report 

DATE: January 26, 2023 

 

A. Meetings Attended 
Tuesday, January 3 9:00 AM MAWA Executive Committee 
 2:00 PM Metro MAWD Planning 
Wednesday, January 4 6:30 PM Board Meeting 
Tuesday, January 10 1:30 PM MAWD Education/Events Committee 
Wednesday, January 11 9:00 AM Public Works Forum 
 1:30 PM MAWD Handbook Committee 
Thursday, January 12 4:00 PM Simba’s Retirement Celebration 
Friday, January 13 9:00 AM MAWD Board Meeting 
Tuesday, January 17 11:00 AM Project Planning with Barr 
 7:00 PM Metro MAWD Meeting 
Wednesday, January 18 5:00 PM Special Board Meeting 
Thursday, January 19 2:00 PM Flood Risk Studies Updates 
Tuesday, January 24 2:00 PM Metro-INET Board Meeting 
Wednesday, January 25 11:30 AM Metro Administrators Meeting 
Friday, January 27 11:00 AM Audit Planning Meeting  
 

B. Upcoming Meetings and Dates 
CAC Meeting     February 7, 2023 
March Board Meeting    March 1, 2023 (Annual Meeting) 
MAWD Legislative Days    February 15-16, 2023 
April Board Meeting    April 5, 2023 
CAC Meeting     April 11, 2023 
Metro MAWD     April 18, 2023 
May Board Meeting     May 3, 2023 
WaterFest      June 3, 2023 
June Board Meeting     June 7, 2023 
CAC Meeting     June 13, 2023 
July Board Meeting     June 28, 2023 
 
 
 



January 2023 Administrator’s Report 
Page 2 

   
C. Ongoing Project Updates 

Land Acquisition and Use Policy – This item has been delayed and with more information to come 
at a future meeting.  

 
West Vadnais Lake Boundary Change – No update on this item is available at this time.   

 
Board of Managers Governance Documents – This has also been delayed with more information to 
come at a future meeting.    

 
D. Annual Meeting Reminder 

The board’s annual meeting is planned for the March 1, 2023 regular meeting.  At the annual 
meeting, the board will declare their official designations of engineer, attorney, accountant, bank, 
and newspapers. The board will also elect their officers for the next 12 months. The following is the 
list of officers and their designated responsibilities.  

• The President will serve as the chairperson for all meetings, be a signatory to the District’s 
account and sign any contracts or correspondence.  

• The Vice President will perform the President duties in the event of an absence. The Vice 
President is also responsible for being the personnel representative from the Board. This means 
that the Vice President would coordinate the Administrator’s review as well as consult with the 
Administrator on personnel issues that may arise.  

• The Treasurer will be a signatory on District accounts and sign the monthly checks.  
• The Secretary will ensure meeting minutes are prepared and approved by the board as well as 

sign documents that require multiple signatures.  

At this meeting, the board should consider designating board representatives to the Citizens 
Advisory Committee (CAC) and the Metro Watersheds meeting.  

 
E. Minnesota Watersheds (formally MAWD) Updates 

I have attached two documents for your information.  The first is the legislative update that 
also includes information about the Minnesota Watersheds Legislative Days. If you are 
interested in attending this event, please let me know and we will get you registered.  
 
During the time of the legislative event there will also be a special meeting of the 
membership.  That information is also attached. That meeting is to vote to assume the 
name of Minnesota Watersheds, formally. The board should discuss if anyone will be able to 
attend this special meeting in order to be delegates from RWMWD.  
  



Minnesota Watersheds  
Legislative Update 
January 13, 2023 

By Ray Bohn 

The 2023 Legislative Session has started with a flourish. Typically, the first session of the biennium is full 
of agencies introductions and overviews, results of policy studies, macro budget issues, and other types 
of activities to help familiarize new legislators with the agencies and issues their respective committees 
will be working on during the session.   

Not this year. While some of the above outlined activity is taking place, it has largely been replaced by 
direct action on legislation. For example, the legislature passed, and the governor has signed into law a 
tax conformity bill that brings Minnesota tax statutes in line with Federal tax law. This can be a 
controversial bill, but sailed through both bodies with little or no controversy.   

Because Gov. Walz was reelected and the DFL retained control of the House and took control of the 
Senate, they are driving the agenda at this point. Also, on their docket for immediate consideration is 
codifying abortion rights, legalizing the issuing of drivers licenses to undocumented residents, pushing 
legalization of marijuana, and other similar issues. Most of these issues are controversial so how long it 
takes to proceed through their immediate agenda is anyone’s guess.   

The Governor will begin laying out his budget recommendations as early as next week so that may 
temper some of these issues, but probably not much.  

Our general fund legislation is being drafted at this point and BWSR has agreed to put the board 
authorizing watershed district projects clarification in their housekeeping bill.   

We continue to work on the two drainage bills that have been discussed over the summer and fall which 
include the drainage registry and DNR’s early intervention proposed legislation. Presently we are still in 
discussions at the Drainage Work Group on the drainage registry proposal with its proponents and have 
another meeting in early February in the Workgroup.  On the DNRs early coordination legislation, the 
good news is DNR has agreed to not introduce any legislation on this topic this session and continue to 
work with the Drainage Work Group.    

Legislative deadlines as outlined below just came out today.  
• March 10th: Committees must act favorably on bills in the house of origin. 
• March 24th: Committees must act favorably on bills, or companions of bills, that met the first 

deadline in the other body. 
• April 4th: Committees must act favorably on major appropriation and finance bills. 
• April 4th - April 10th: Easter/Passover break 
• May 22nd: Legislature must complete its work 

Be sure to register for and attend Minnesota Watersheds’ Legislative Briefing and Day at the Capitol on 
February 15 to see how you and your watershed district or watershed management organization can 
assist Minnesota Watersheds with our legislative program. 

https://www.mnwatershed.org/legislative-breakfast-day-at-the-capitol


PRIORITY A: TOP PRIORITIES FOR 2023 LEGISLATIVE ACTION
TAX BILL 2018-02 Increase or remove the $250k General Fund tax levy Limit

2021-01, 02 Seek capacity funding for the $250k capped rural WDs and SWCDs from state and county general funds
2021-06 Require 60-day review periods when state agencies adopt new policies
2021-04, 07 Use CWFs for implementation, not capacity; require metro watershed-based implementation grants to go through approved 103B plans

23 Bonding Bill 2022-03, 2016-08 Obtain stable funing for Flood Damage Reduction and Natural Resources Enhancement Projects
2022-04 Clarification of watershed district project establishment

PRIORITY B: LEGISLATION TO SUPPORT
2022-02 Limited liability for Smart Salting-certified Commercial Salt Applicators
2021-03 Allow greater flexibility in open meeting law for virtual attendance, not just during a pandemic
2021-05 Change crop insurance provisions to cover crop losses within impoundment areas
2020-01 Allow appeals for public waters designations
2022-06 Limiting negative impacts from wake boats by supporting scientific studies by the University of Minnesota

PRIORITY C: TOP PRIORITIES FOR 2023 ADMINISTRATIVE LOBBYING RESOURCES
2022-03 Increased support and participation for the Minnesota Drainage Work Group
2022-01 MDH - WD/WMO representation on Stormwater Reuse Task Force
LGWRT CWC - Increase Clean Water Funding for watershed-based implementation programs
2020-04 DNR - temporary water storage on DNR wetlands during major flood events

Resolutions for the Parking Lot (Support if opportunities arise)
2018-04 Require WD Permits for the DNR
2019-04 Clarify county financing obligations and allow WD G.O. bonds for drainage systems
2017-06 Stable General Fund allocation for flood damage reduction projects
2017-05 WD general operating levy adjustment: Middle Fork Crow River
2019-08 WD general operating levy adjustment: Heron Lake
2019-09 WD general operating levy adjustment: Shell Rock River
2019-10 WD general operating levy adjustment: Pelican River
2019-11 WD general operating levy adjustment: Buffalo Red River
2018-06 DNR - ensure timely updates to Wildlife Management Area (WMA) plans
2017-02 DNR - temporary lake quarantine authorization to control the spread of aquatic invasive species
2019-07 DNR - change Chinese Mystery Snail designation and support research needs
2019-01 DNR - streamline DNR permit process
2018-08 DNR - reinforce existing rights to maintain/repair 103E drainage systems
2020-03 BWSR - require soil health goals in metro watershed management plans
2019-05 BWSR - WD Membership on Wetland Technical Evaluation Panels
2019-03 BWSR - Support watershed-based management in MN River Basin through increased storage
2018-03 BWSR - require timely appointments to the BWSR Board
2019-02 MPCA - default classification for artificial watercourses that serve as public drainage ditches

LEGISLATION TO DEFEAT - This legislation died at the end of the session. Watch to see if reintroduced.
HF 0368/SF 0711 Green/Utke Remove eminent domain powers for WDs
HF 0884/SF 1539 Green/Utke Requires county commissioners to only appoint county commissioners to serve as WD managers
HF 0989/SF 0881 Marquart/Ruud $22M CWF appropriation to SWCDs
HF 1586/SF 2214 Torkelson/Johnson Fund a SWCD/WD merger study once a 1W1P is approved
HF 1718 Fischer Establish SWCD account in the special revenue fund, $12M/year for capacity, 1% for BWSR administration
HF 2030/SF 1835 Nelson/Kiffmeyer Modifying uses of positive general fund; removes CWF payback from $22M SWCD capacity funds
HF 4274, 4274A Lippert/Hansen Drainage registry information portal

DNR Incorporating environmental, land use, and multipurpose water management criteria M.S. 103E.015 requirements



2023 Top Legislative Priorities Talking Points 
Minnesota Watersheds 

 
 

INCREASE THE GENERAL FUND LEVY LIMIT   
• Watershed Districts operating under Minnesota Statutes Chapter § 103D.905 have not been allowed to increase 

their general fund levy for over 20 years. 
• The present $250,000 levy limit does not allow primarily rural watershed districts to cover the increased cost of 

operations, nor does it cover costs from the increased demands placed on them by the State, such as One 
Watershed, One Plan. 

• Most rural watershed districts have done outstanding work in leveraging their tax dollars to return two to four 
times that amount in grant funding. The $250,000 levy limit restricts the ability of watershed districts to provide 
adequate match capabilities as well as develop longer term capacity to meet their water plan objectives. 

REQUIRE 60-DAY REVIEW PERIODS WHEN STATE AGENCIES ADOPT NEW POLICIES   
• Often water management policies of state agencies have an impact on watersheds, especially when the local 

units of government are unaware of policies or policy updates. 
• The final draft policy of a state agency is a critical document for watersheds to determine policy impacts. 
• It is necessary for local input in state decision making. At the very least, consideration of the views of local 

constituents whose lives are affected by policies should be made. 
• Requiring a 60-day review policy would allow input from watersheds and could make policies better through 

coordinated and collaborative input prior to adoption by a state agency. 

USE CLEAN WATER FUNDS FOR IMPLEMENTATION, NOT CAPACITY   
• The legislature has used Clean Water Funds to provide capacity funding for Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

as a stop gap measure until permanent, long-term funding options are developed. 
• Minnesota Watersheds supports redirecting Clean Water Funds from Soil and Water Conservation District 

capacity to BWSR Watershed-based Implementation Funding. Minnesota Watersheds supports funding from the 
state or other permanent funding methods. We do not believe Clean Water Funds were ever intended for 
capacity funding. 

SUPPORT 2023 BONDING REQUESTS AND STABLE FUNDING FOR FUTURE FLOOD DAMAGE REDUCTION AND 
NATURAL RESOURCES ENHANCEMENT PROJECTS  

• Studies show that for every $1 invested in flood damage reduction, there is a $6 return on investment. 
• Flooding is not going away. DNR grant applications list a need of over $160 million, yet no money has been 

allocated for the past two years. 
• Local communities and farmers who are subject to repeated funding are profoundly affected by financial 

devastation. 
• Investing in stable funding for flood damage reduction and natural resources enhancement projects greatly 

reduces the number of communities, family farms, and other small businesses impacted by flooding and allows 
the opportunity to secure federal matching dollars which bring investment and jobs into communities. 

• Counties, cities, watershed districts, and townships do not have the resources to construct projects to reduce 
the effects of severe and repeated flooding, nor to repair damaged infrastructure, without the assistance of 
state funding. 

CLARIFICATION OF WATERSHED DISTRICT PROJECT ESTABLISHMENT   
• Minn. Stat. § 103D.605 provides a process for a watershed district to construct a project with government aid or 

as part of a plan. The statute contains a mix of actions required by watershed district managers and the BWSR 
board. Minnesota Watersheds supports working with BWSR to clarify Minn. Stat. § 103D.605, Subd. 5. 

SUPPORT FOR MN DRAINAGE WORK GROUP   
• Minnesota Watersheds supports the MN Drainage Work Group process to work cooperatively with drainage 

stakeholders and state agencies to address state policy issues related to drainage. 



SUPPORT LIMITED LIABILITY PROTECTIONS TO CERTIFIED COMMERCIAL SALT APPLICATORS   
• There is no easy way to remove chloride from our lakes, rivers, and wetlands once it gets there. It is considered 

a permanent pollutant. Prevention is our best and really our only option for limiting the negative impacts of 
excess chlorides in our waters. 

• This pollutant comes from several sources, but one easily reduced source comes when applicators overapply salt 
hoping to reduce their risk against slip and fall lawsuits. 

• With proper training and limited liability protections for those certified, we believe a difference can be made. 

Thank you for sharing these issues with your legislators! We’d appreciate hearing about your interactions. 
Minnesota Watersheds | 1005 Mainstreet | Hopkins, MN 55343 | mnwatershed.org 

For more information, contact Jan Voit, Executive Director at admin@mnwatershed.org | 507-822-0921 

http://www.mnwatershed.org/
mailto:admin@mnwatershed.org


 

Minnesota Watersheds | 1005 Mainstreet | Hopkins, MN 55343 | www.mnwatershed.org 
For more information, contact Jan Voit, Executive Director at admin@mnwatershed.org or 507-822-0921 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda – Wednesday, February 15, 2023 
Welcome to the Minnesota Watersheds’ 2023 Legislative Briefing. The following schedule is approximate. Speakers 
and times may change as needed to accommodate the ever-changing schedules of lobbyists and directors. 

4:00 – 4:30  Minnesota Watersheds Top Legislative Priorities     
4:00 Welcome and Announcements – Jan Voit, Minnesota Watersheds Executive Director 
4:05  Capitol Activity Update – Ray Bohn, Minnesota Watersheds Lobbyist 
4:30 Strategies for Working with the Legislature and State Agencies on Minnesota Watersheds 

Platform Items – Jan Voit, Executive Director  
 Increase the general fund levy limit 
 Require 60-day review periods when state agencies adopt new policies 
 Use Clean Water Funds for implementation, not capacity 
 Support stable funding for Flood Damage Reduction and Natural Resources Enhancement Projects 
 Clarification of watershed district project establishment 
 Monitor and support Drainage Work Group process 
 Provide limited liability protections to certified commercial salt applicators 

5:00 – 5:50  Funding Updates         
5:00  Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Supplemental Budget and Bonding Bills – John 

Jaschke, BWSR Executive Director 
5:15 Bonding Bill Update – Pat Lynch, Department of Natural Resources and Rob Sip, RRWMB 

Executive Director 
5:45 Q & A  

6:00  Closing Remarks/End of Briefing 
6:00 Jan Voit, Executive Director 

6:00 – 8:00   Networking Event: Minnesota Watersheds Members and Legislators 
Invitations to this networking event were sent to all legislators. However, individual invitations from 
members helps provide additional encouragement for them to attend. 
Take advantage of this opportunity to network with other members and chat with legislators as they 
arrive. Please also use this time for informal regional caucus discussion. There will be a cash bar. Light 
food options will be served for you to enjoy.  

Agenda – Thursday, February 16, 2023 
Welcome to the 2023 Legislative Breakfast.  

7 am – 8:30 am   Networking Event: Minnesota Watersheds Members  
Take advantage of this opportunity to have a buffet breakfast with Minnesota Watersheds members at 
the Capitol Ridge Hotel and discuss our legislative priorities.  

9 am – 4 pm   Meet with Legislators     
Please use this occasion to visit with legislators in their offices or at the Capitol.  

2023 Legislative Briefing and Day at the Capitol  
Radisson Hotel - Capitol Ridge 

161 St. Anthony Avenue, St. Paul | February 15-16, 2023 

http://www.mnwatershed.org/
mailto:admin@mnwatershed.org






















 
 

************ 
Project and 

Program 
Status Reports 

 
 

************ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Memorandum 

To:     Board of Managers and Staff  

From:     Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman  

Subject:    Project and Program Status Report – January 2023 

Date:    January 26, 2023 
 
 
Note: The location, brief description, and current status of each project described below can 
be found on the 2023 RWMWD engineering services story map. 

Project feasibility studies 

A. Interim emergency response planning for district areas at risk of flooding (Barr project 
manager: Gareth Becker; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this project is to provide information and guidance to cities throughout the district about 
how to protect low-lying habitable structures from flooding during the 100-year storm event. These 
emergency response plans address areas for which there is 1) not currently a feasible project that has 
been identified to protect structures or 2) a project that cannot be implemented in the near future due to 
logistical and/or budgeting reasons. This effort is an outcome of the Beltline resiliency study. This project 
will extend into 2022. 

Barr has created plan sheets for placing emergency flood risk mitigation measures and has met with the 
district to present the set of figures. In February, we will split figures by municipality and develop a 
memo for each to aid in presenting to each city’s staff. Any needed edits will be made to the 
designs/figures, and Barr will begin working directly with city representatives to communicate the plans 
to potentially impacted individuals and answer questions about implementation.  

B. Kohlman Creek flood risk reduction feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon 
Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk 
along Kohlman Creek to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination 
with the cities of Maplewood and North Saint Paul, evaluation of alternatives to reduce flood risk, 
preparation of cost estimates for each alternative, and identification of permitting requirements. This 
project focused primarily on areas surrounding PCU Pond and the wetland complex west of White Bear 
Avenue. This feasibility study is a follow-up study of flood-prone areas identified in the Beltline resiliency 
study.  

The Kohlman Creek flood risk reduction feasibility study focuses on concept development of the types of 
system improvements near PCU Pond that the city would support and that would complement North 
Saint Paul’s other ongoing studies. The city’s study is being conducted in parallel with the Kohlman 
Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion study (upstream of PCU Pond and the North Saint Paul Urban Ecology 
Center), so system modifications around PCU Pond will not be further developed until later in 2023 

https://maps.barr.com/RWMWD/BoardMeeting_Updates/StoryMapJournal2022/index.html


To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 2 
 
when the Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion concept is better defined and resulting design flows 
are determined. 

Barr has provided the district’s stormwater model to the City of North Saint Paul for reference in the 
city’s flood risk reduction study. After learning about the city’s planned approach for flood risk 
mitigation in these areas, Barr will begin evaluating potential flood risk mitigation options for PCU Pond 
and the wetland complex west of White Bear Avenue.  

This month, Barr and the RWMWD met with North Saint Paul to discuss the city’s ongoing flood risk 
reduction study and identify opportunities to collaborate in 2023, including public engagement and 
outreach. Following the meeting, Barr shared the current version of the RWMWD stormwater model 
and GIS files of habitable structures that the district surveyed in 2022.  

C. Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon 
Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk on 
Kohlman Creek by diverting high flows to the historic County Ditch 17. Work includes coordination with 
stakeholders, evaluation of alternatives to reduce flood risk, preparation of cost estimates for each 
alternative, and identification of permitting requirements. This feasibility study is a follow-up study of a 
flood-prone area identified in the Beltline resiliency study.  

This month, Barr and RWMWD staff met with the county and the county’s contractor to discuss site 
constants for flood risk reduction modifications. County staff provided updated direction regarding 
potential ponding locations on the golf course. Following discussions with county staff, Barr started 
incorporating revisions to the district’s stormwater model to incorporate larger BMPs to lower peak 
water-surface elevations on Kohlman Creek.  

This month, Barr reviewed alternatives for increasing the size of the diversion as well as corresponding 
changes to pond size in the golf course. We met with the RWMWD to review results and discuss next 
steps for coordinating with the county.  

In February, Barr will prepare a memorandum documenting existing constraints, diversion sizes, and 
impacts to inundation extents for the RWMWD to review. We will also review the water quality 
monitoring data that the RWMWD collected.  

D. County Ditch 17 improvements feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; 
RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk 
northeast of Wakefield Lake along historic County Ditch 17 to remove structures from the 100-year 
floodplain. Work includes coordination with the City of Maplewood, evaluation of alternatives to reduce 
flood risk, preparation of cost estimates for each alternative, and identification of permitting 
requirements. This feasibility study is a follow-up study of a flood-prone area identified in the Beltline 
resiliency study.  

The feasibility study was presented to the RWMWD managers at the January meeting. In 2023, Barr will 
work with the City of Maplewood to communicate flood risk to property owners.  



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 3 
 

E. Phalen Village feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project 
manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near 
Phalen Village north of Lake Phalen to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes 
coordination with the City of Maplewood, evaluation of alternatives to reduce flood risk, preparation of 
cost estimates for each alternative, and identification of permitting requirements. This feasibility study is 
a follow-up study of a flood-prone area identified in the Beltline resiliency study.  

The feasibility study was presented to the RWMWD managers at the January meeting. In 2023, Barr and 
the RWMWD will work with the City of Maplewood to incorporate system modifications in the city’s 
street improvement project that mitigate existing flood risk.  

F. Ames Lake area flood risk reduction planning study (Barr project manager: Brandon 
Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose is to complete a planning-level evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near Ames 
Lake, supported by the City of Saint Paul. Work includes coordination discussions with Saint Paul; review 
of potential pipe alignments, land acquisition costs, utility conflicts, and permitting issues; and related 
design. If the planning study identifies projects that impact regional drainage, a feasibility study will be 
completed in 2023. This planning study is a follow-up study that was identified in the Beltline resiliency 
study.  

The study was presented to the RWMWD mangers at the January board meeting. Barr is preparing a 
scope summary for the detailed feasibility study, including additional coordination with the Saint Paul 
Housing and Redevelopment Authority, which will occur in 2023. We anticipate sharing the scope 
summary with the RWMWD managers at the March board meeting.  

G. Owasso Basin area/North Star Estates improvements (Barr project manager: Sam 
Redinger; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the benefit-cost of flood risk reduction strategies in the Owasso 
Basin/North Star Estates area by reviewing potential pipe and berm alignments, land acquisition costs, 
utility conflicts, permitting issues, and related design as well as construction and long-term maintenance 
costs associated with each alternative that achieves the project objective of removing habitable 
structures from the floodplain in this area. Stakeholder outreach with the City of Little Canada is an 
important part of this effort. This study is a continuation of the Owasso Basin bypass study, which laid 
out several phases of implementation and areas of further study. 

Barr drafted a technical memorandum to summarize the flood risk reduction alternatives evaluated in 
and around North Star Estates and Owasso Basin. The document was emailed to the RWMWD and is in 
the final stages of review. Once review is complete, Barr will finalize the document and share it with the 
RWMWD board. On January 11, Barr and the RWMWD presented the information in the draft memo to 
the City of Little Canada at the city’s January council workshop meeting. The council was supportive of 
the efforts and appreciated the information. The memo will serve as the basis for the preliminary design 
of improvements to the area. 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 4 
 

H. Double Driveway Pond optimization study (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD 
project manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the benefit-cost of water quality improvements in Double 
Driveway Pond in the Fish Creek subwatershed. These improvements will be targeted at sediment 
reduction strategies that will benefit downstream Fish Creek, which is considered impaired by excess 
sediment. An important part of this study is tying strategies to the findings of a current Department of 
Agriculture study (currently under review) that is assessing the water quality of runoff from upstream 
areas.  

The board approved the scope summary for Double Driveway Pond at the special board meeting in 
January. The scope includes an erosion inventory of the creek, coordination with the Minnesota 
Department of Agriculture to dredge Double Driveway Pond, vegetation restoration, and targeted 
stream restoration. Barr completed the erosion inventory of the tributary creek (task 1) and developed a 
memo summarizing results and design recommendations. 

Additionally, we completed a conceptual alternatives analysis for additional dredging of Double 
Driveway Pond. Because the Bailey team is dredging the pond to its original design depth from 2014, 
Barr determined that any additional dredging would not provide significant added benefit. Therefore, 
we are working with the Bailey team to develop a temporary restoration plan to facilitate the enhanced 
restoration to be completed later in spring/summer 2023. 

I. Carver Ponds improvements study (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project 
manager: Tina Carstens) 

The purpose of this study is to characterize the water quality in the Carver Ponds in the Fish Creek 
subwatershed and to evaluate the benefit-cost of water quality improvements to the ponds. These 
improvements will be targeted at internal loading of nutrients in the pond, as well as potential external 
sediment and nutrient loading. The goal will be to inform design solutions to be implemented in the 
ponds. 

There was no new activity this period. Barr will work with the RWMWD to determine monitoring needs 
in 2023. 

J. Evaluation of compliance with South Metro Mississippi River total suspended solids (TSS) 
total maximum daily load (TMDL) (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project 
managers: Eric Korte, Nicole Soderholm) 

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the RWMWD’s compliance with the South Metro Mississippi 
River TSS TMDL. As a regulated municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4), the district is required to 
meet the waste load allocations (WLA) of 154 pounds of TSS per acre per year. The WLA is applicable to 
the RWMWD for the Saint Paul Beltline Interceptor and its contributing drainage area, as the district 
owns and operates the infrastructure. 

There was no new activity this period. Barr will continue working with the RWMWD and the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency to evaluate the TSS data for 2023 TMDL reporting requirements. 

Research projects 

K. Kohlman permeable weir test system (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD 
project manager: Bill Bartodziej) 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 5 
 
The objective of this current investigation is to design a full-scale permeable weir treatment system for 
installation in the Kohlman Basin.  

The research portion of this project is complete, and the expanded treatment element is to be 
constructed as a part of the 2023 CIP maintenance and repairs project. The site is planned for April. Next 
month, this research section will be removed from the project status report. 

L. Shallow lake aeration study (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD project 
manager: Bill Bartodziej) 

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the potential effectiveness of aeration in shallow lakes by 
studying the effect of aeration in three smaller shallow systems (Markham Pond, Bennett Lake, and 
Gervais Mill Pond) in detail during 2021 and 2022. This approach is being pursued as an alternative to 
whole-lake alum treatments. 

An interim report was completed in December. Monitoring recommendations for next year will be 
provided in the first quarter of 2023 in anticipation of the spring and summer sample collection efforts. 

Capital improvements 

M. Woodbury Target store stormwater retrofit projects (Barr project manager: Katie Turpin-
Nagel; RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg) 

The purpose of this project is to design, provide bid assistance for, and oversee construction of BMP 
retrofits at two Target retail stores.  

Throughout December and early January, Barr developed various concept design layouts, performed 
minimum impact design standards (MIDS) water quality modeling, and drafted cost estimates for the 
stormwater retrofit options. The concept design layouts, model results, and cost estimates were shared 
with Paige Ahlborg at a January 9 meeting, during which a preferred concept design layout was selected. 
The details will be presented to Target Corporation in mid-February. We are awaiting schedule details 
from Target.  

N. Targeted retrofit projects (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: 
Paige Ahlborg) 

The purpose of this project is to design, provide bid assistance for, and oversee construction of BMP 
retrofits on previously identified commercial, school, and faith-based properties throughout the district. 

Existing-conditions models are being updated for Roosevelt Homes, which is owned by the Saint Paul 
Public Housing Authority. Preliminary concepts are being developed to present the owner with options 
and show how projects could be phased in over time. Barr and the RWMWD anticipate coordinating 
with the City of Saint Paul to help inform improvements. 

O. Stewardship grant program support (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean and Michael 
McKinney; RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg) 

The purpose of this project is to is to a) provide BMP design and review services to cost-share applicants 
throughout the RWMWD on as-needed basis and b) support development of the stewardship grant 
program. 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 6 
 
Woodland Hills Church in Maplewood is partnering with Settled to build and temporarily locate “tiny 
homes” in an underutilized parking lot, using the space as a model for tiny home communities. Barr is 
developing preliminary concepts for stormwater management alongside pavement removal in the 
parking lot. Preliminary stormwater calculations and spatial diagrams are being developed to help 
determine the potential for grant funding in 2023. 

The street sweeping initiative undertaken in 2022 will be pursued as a feasibility study in 2023 with the 
purpose of assisting the District’s next steps in supporting member cities with targeted street sweeping 
activities.  

P. Lake Emily subwatershed regional BMP (Barr project manager: Leslie DellAngelo; 
RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg) 

The purpose of this project is to complete final design, plans, and specifications for a regional 
stormwater BMP in the Lake Emily subwatershed with the purpose of decreasing phosphorus loads to 
Lake Emily, which is deemed to be at risk of impairment from excess nutrients. 

Last period, Barr finalized conceptual designs for both the Arbogast Street and the Vivian Avenue/Cobb 
Street sites to a 30-percent design level using additional survey information collected in the field, 
geotechnical information obtained from site soil borings and laboratory testing, additional hydrologic 
and hydraulic modeling, and water quality modeling. We also finalized the 30-percent engineer’s 
opinion of probable cost and cost-benefit for each project. The managers approved moving forward with 
the Arbogast underground filter design at their special January meeting.  Barr will complete final design, 
plans, and specifications for the project later this spring. 

Q. Pioneer Park stormwater reuse (Barr project manager: Jennifer Koehler; RWMWD project 
manager: Paige Ahlborg) 

The purpose of this project is to design and implement a stormwater reuse irrigation system in Pioneer 
Park to conserve groundwater and reduce phosphorus loading to downstream water bodies, in 
partnership with the City of Little Canada. 

Barr and the RWMWD prepared for and attended a Little Canada parks commission meeting on January 
5 and a city council meeting on January 12 to present the proposed Pioneer Park stormwater reuse 
project. Both the parks commission and the city council were in support of the project. We prepared for 
and attended a virtual meeting on January 10 with Little Canada parks maintenance staff to discuss 
operations and maintenance questions about the stormwater reuse system. In response to requests 
from the Board of Water and Soil Resources regarding the wetland delineation and in follow-up to 
comments and questions from Little Canada parks maintenance staff, Barr conducted a survey of the 
pond outlet and its current water level as well as the pond’s maximum depth. We are currently setting 
up the project plan set framework and refining the system evaluations and optimization based on recent 
information and conversations with the city.  

CIP project repair and maintenance 

R. Beltline and Battle Creek inspection (Barr project manager: Brad Lindaman, RWMWD 
project manager: Dave Vlasin) 

The purpose of this project is to maintain the existing Beltline and Battle Creek tunnel systems and 
infrastructure owned and operated by the RWMWD.  



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 7 
 
In January, Barr will evaluate findings to develop the inspection report, which will be complete in 
February/March 2023. 

S. 2023 CIP maintenance and repair project (Barr project manager: Gareth Becker; RWMWD 
project manager: Dave Vlasin) 

The purpose of this project is to maintain existing systems and infrastructure owned and operated by the 
RWMWD and to assist and facilitate stormwater pond cleanouts to allow other public entities to meet 
their MS4 requirements.   

Work started on January 10 with removal of snow at access points for the anticipated pond cleanout 
sites. Miller Excavating, Inc. completed the NPDES application and received permit authorization. The 
2023 CIP work will begin with pond cleanouts; Miller will start at Aspen Pond in Little Canada on January 
25 and continue with the excavation of the Woodbury ponds the week after. Since work is just 
beginning, no progress payment application will be submitted for the February meeting 

T. 2023-2025 BMP maintenance program (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD 
project manager: Paige Ahlborg) 

The purpose of this project is to maintain the RWMWD’s existing vegetated BMPs. 

Barr and the RWMWD have developed a request for qualifications to form a pool of qualified landscape 
maintenance contractors to provide maintenance services for the existing vegetated BMPs in the 
district. This effort was initiated in 2015 as a pilot program to support grantees and project partners 
with vegetation maintenance for up to two years post-construction. School-based BMPs are maintained 
on a longer-term basis. In 2023, 23 sites will be maintained as part of this program.  

In March, the board will review Barr and the RWMWD’s recommendations to award contracts to select 
contractors within the pool of applicants. 

U. New technology review (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: 
Tina Carstens) 

Edible Plants in Native Plant Community Restorations 

Natural 
History 

Edible plants constitute a large portion of native plant communities. Native plants feed 
an abundance of wildlife while also producing foods that were historically consumed by 
indigenous people. Throughout Minnesota, indigenous people have a long history of 
foraging for strawberries, blueberries, raspberries, blackberries, wild plum, currants, 
gooseberries, crab apples, ground plum, wild leeks, wild rice, hazelnut, acorns, wild 
mushrooms, and more. 

Restoration 
Projects 
within the 
District 

Native plants are implemented on nearly all District projects where the ground is 
disturbed, and planting is required. Goals of these projects are typically to increase 
biodiversity by introducing a diversity of plants (shrubs, trees, grasses, wildflowers, 
sedges, and ferns) and to support pollinators and wildlife. These plants also work to 
improve stormwater infiltration, sequester carbon dioxide, build soil health, and provide 
aesthetic improvements to project sites. Food production can be added to the list- by 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 8 
 

planting native food-producing species such as those mentioned above, people can 
forage for nutritious supplements to their diet on appropriately-chosen project sites. 

Foraging Foraging has recently become popular as an outdoor activity and as a way to diversify 
one’s diet. It involves walking the land during different times of the year to gather 
herbs, berries, nuts, roots, flowers, buds, foliage, seeds, mushrooms, and more. The 
plants that are gleaned are typically perennial and survive harvest to produce again.  

Special consideration should be given to whether (or whether not) a given project site is 
an appropriate place to invite foraging.  Too much foot traffic in popular areas could 
damage plantings and over-harvesting could limit future food production.  Also, it may 
be undesirable to invite visitors for certain types of sensitive sites in certain areas.  This 
option should be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

Non-native 
edibles 

If project goals call for it, edible non-native plants could also be included in a restoration 
project. Perennial (as opposed to annual) non-native plants would be the best choice in 
these projects in order to keep maintenance costs low. Non-native, perennial species 
that could be planted include asparagus, rhubarb, perennial onion, currants, 
gooseberries, raspberries, and fruit trees such as apple, pear, and cherry. Nut-producing 
shrubs and trees could also be considered. 

If gardening annual vegetables (carrots, spinach, peppers, etc.) are a project’s goals, it 
would be best to implement these plants into something like a community garden 
space. That way a plot of land could truly be productive and maintenance requirements 
could be enforced. Water and other gardening essentials could be provided to assist 
gardeners. 

Conclusion • Harvesting native plants for human consumption has occurred since people first 
arrived in what is now Minnesota. 

• Native plants are part of most District projects, and these plants could be made 
available for foraging on appropriate sites. 

• Perennial non-native food-producing plants could be introduced into a 
restoration project. It might be advisable to call such a project a “sustainable 
landscape project” as opposed to a “restoration project” to be most accurate as 
to the intent of the project. 

• If there is a desire to grow annual vegetables (tomatoes, potatoes, beans, etc.), 
concentrating plants and other amenities into a community garden space (as 
opposed to dispersed plantings) is advised. 

 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 9 
 

Wild indigo 
growing at Ames 
Lake in St. Paul (a 
2003 RWMWD 
restoration 
project). Native 
Americans used 
this plant to treat 
cuts and reduce 
fevers. The bur 
oak in the 
background was 
a source of 
acorns that were 
ground into a 
flour. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 10 
 

V. Natural Resources Update – Bill Bartodziej and Matt Doneux 

 
Gervais Mill Pond Aeration – update  
 
Last winter, we detected extremely low dissolved oxygen levels (0.3 mg/L) in Gervais Mill Pond. 
Gamefish species like largemouth bass and bluegill sunfish require at least 4.0 mg/L of dissolved oxygen 
to sustain populations over the winter. Rough fish species like the common carp can tolerate lower 
oxygen levels. However, last winter, even juvenile carp were not able to survive in this system. During 
ice-out, in early April, we observed hundreds of dead carp (4” to 10”) floating on the water surface near 
the creek inlet on the southwest side of the southern pond lobe. This observation confirmed that 
Gervais Mill Pond was a carp nursery area.     

 
Hundreds of dead juvenile carp on Gervais Mill Pond – April 2022. 

Fish stocking 
 
As we reported last fall, the major carp kill provided an excellent opportunity to reset the fish 
community in the pond system. We contacted DNR, and the regional fisheries manager was happy to 
partner on the project. Gervais Mill Pond was stocked with adult bluegill sunfish in the spring of last 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 11 
 
year. We are happy to report that fall netting revealed a robust sunfish population heading into winter. 
Sustaining this native fish population will effectively control carp recruitment (sunfish are voracious 
feeders of carp eggs).     
 

The Aeration System  
The pumps and diffusers were installed last fall and the system was in operation on December 27th, 
2022. The setup is functioning properly and open water areas have formed above each bubble diffuser. 
Thin ice signs encircle these areas, and the NR team checks the pump system and the signs on a weekly 
basis. We conducted dissolved oxygen (DO) sampling on January 18th and the results were quite 
encouraging. In the central lobe with aeration, DO readings averaged 7.9 mg/L, while areas without 
aeration had mean levels between 2.4 and 3.1 mg/L (see map below). The central Mill Pond lobe should 
provide a refuge with ample DO for bluegill sunfish and other gamefish species. We plan to continue to 
monitor DO levels in the pond on a monthly basis.  

 
Gervais Mill Pond aeration system – January 23rd, 2023. 

 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 12 
 

 
 
 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 13 
 

 
W. Public Involvement and Education Program – Sage Passi 
 
Destination Native Plants: Woodbury High School and Lionsgate Academy 

       

 

 

 

 

 

In January, we kicked off the year 2023 by doing seed stratifying with two classes at L’Etoile du Nord, 
five science classes at Lionsgate Academy in Shoreview for use in their large-scale native plantings in 
their open space and with the environmental club at Woodbury High School who will be creating a 
prairie garden on their school grounds this spring. That brought our totals to sixteen classes and one 
club who have done this hands-on activity with us this winter. Thank you to Mitch Thomsen, science 
teacher at Mounds Park for sharing his great slide show, “Winter is Tough” for our older classes.  In 
return, we will provide his classes with an array of stratified seeds to plant and grow into seedlings to fill 
in their large-scale prairie and rain garden buffer areas in the spring.  We like introducing students to 
two new terms, illustrated in detail in the slide show. They are abscisic acid and gibberellic acid, two 
plant hormones that help slow down or start up the germination process.  In our presentation, we 
compare these scientific terms to the brakes and accelerator in a car and have students physically 
demonstrate their roles in germination.  

Thank you to Ramsey County Master Gardeners, Barbara Brockway, Kerry Morgan, Bill Brian, (photo 
below left), Barbara Le Tourneau, Jan Fransen and Donna Anderson for their support with these classes 
in January! 

Our time-tested puppet show served as an intro for this seed-starting activity with younger students. It 
was a big hit with third and fourth graders (center photo below).          

 

 

 

 

  

“Winter Is Tough in 
Minnesota” 

 

 

 

 

   



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 14 
 

Storm Drain Adoption Grows (Even in the Winter!) 

 

 

 

 

 

Ben Hovland, a photojournalist for MPR recently tweeted a video of himself clearing a storm drain this 
month that went viral. SInce then, CleanWater MN saw an uptick in adoptions, with 68 adoptions in 4 days 
alone in January.  Ann Zawistoski, Research and Communications Consultant for the Center for Global 
Environmental Education (CGEE) reported this to Watershed Partners members via email, commenting, 
“That's really big for January, since during this month there is usually on average about 75 adoptions for the 
whole month in the whole program! Kare 11 picked up on the story and interviewed Ben. They commented, 
“Many neighborhood heroes have stepped up to rescue storm drains from ice and debris and that is worth 
celebrating!” 

Here’s the link to Ben’s interview: 

https://www.kare11.com/video/news/local/breaking-the-news/minnesota-nice-we-lead-the-way-in-
storm-drain-adoptions/89-b7bfbaea-79d9-4d25-9054-6a3527fc7ae9 

Thank you to the storm drain adopters in RWMWD who adopted five drains in January, 2023 that drain 
to Lake Phalen, Grass Lake, Gervais Creek and Carver Lake and those who have been making a difference 
all year! 

As of late December 2022, RWMWD had a total of 534 participants in the Adopt-A-Drain program. One 
hundred thirty-one new drains were adopted in 2022, bringing our watershed district’s total to 958 
drains adopted by the end of 2022. We had 73 new participants in the program this year. The top six 
subwatersheds that have the largest number of storm drain adopters are the St. Paul Beltline, Lake 
Phalen, Willow Creek, Lake Owasso, Battle Creek and Grass Lake (Shoreview). Here is the breakdown of 
total adoptions of drains by city: 

St. Paul 458 
Shoreview 130 
Roseville 109 
White Bear Lake 92 
Maplewood 49 
North St. Paul 35 
Oakdale 32 
Woodbury 31 
Little Canada 13 
Vadnais Heights 11 

 

 

https://www.kare11.com/video/news/local/breaking-the-news/minnesota-nice-we-lead-the-way-in-storm-drain-adoptions/89-b7bfbaea-79d9-4d25-9054-6a3527fc7ae9
https://www.kare11.com/video/news/local/breaking-the-news/minnesota-nice-we-lead-the-way-in-storm-drain-adoptions/89-b7bfbaea-79d9-4d25-9054-6a3527fc7ae9


To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 15 
 

X. Communications and Outreach Program Report – Lauren Hazenson 
 
Content Creation 
 
Stewardship Grant Marketing Campaign 

Last year we conducted a targeted online marketing campaign to areas with traditionally lower 
Stewardship Grant sign-ups, paired with community engagement measures such as an open house in 
East St. Paul. Both efforts successfully engaged the targeted audience, and we are looking to expand 
these efforts this year.  

In concert with online marketing efforts, we are looking into lower-cost ad placement in areas where it 
would reach our target audience, which includes areas of the east metro, including St. Paul and 
Woodbury, with the possible inclusion of Roseville on the west side. Other areas of the district have 
seen better sign-up numbers and do not appear to need as much concentrated effort. However, we will 
continue to do traditional outreach to the entire district in addition to the marketing campaign. This 
campaign will be designed to run from February through early April.  

Displays 

Communications met with internal stakeholders to determine if the proposed display and material 
redesigns would meet their individual program needs. I will follow up with each program to help design 
additional program-specific materials. We have a completed tabletop display for the internship fairs this 
spring, but we still require general District information displays that reflect our branding and mission. 
The next step is to work with our graphic design contractor to develop a set of draft displays and 
materials for the organization as a whole, potentially including an updatable map that can show the 
number of projects in a specific area. Our goal is to have a set of dynamic materials with a consistent 
look and feel for the spring and summer outreach events, including Waterfest. 

E-newsletter 

Audience: 1,589 
Opens: 46.4% 
Link clicks: 4.1% 

Social Media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram) 

Numbers as of 1/23: 

Facebook 

Reach: 31,326 
Engagement (likes, shares, comments): 154 
Audience: 1,332 

 



To:  Board of Managers and Staff 
From:  Tina Carstens and Brad Lindaman 
Subject: Project and Program Status Report January 2023  
Date:  January 26, 2023  Page 16 
 
Instagram 

Reach: 156 
Engagement: 15 
Audience: 732 

Twitter 

Reach: 67 
Engagement: 3 
Audience: 998 

Resident Communications/Professional Development/ Public Meetings, Misc.  

• Lake Owasso Story Map support 
• MN Association of Government Communicators visual design workshop (1/19) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



************ 
Board Action 

Log 

************ 



NOTE: Overflow parking is available at Little Canada City Hall Parking Lot 

  
 
 

Board of Managers Action Log 
Wednesday, February 1, 2023 

 
 

Date 
Added Item Anticipated 

Action Date Means of Action Completed 

January 
2023 

Adopt-A-Drain Program 
Evaluation and 
Promotion 

Spring/Summer 
2023 

Presentation and 
policy discussion.   

December 
2022 

Review of Equity Areas 
Definition Spring 2023 

Stewardship Grant 
Program Review and 

Board Approval 
 

November 
2022 Alum Use Policy Spring 2023 Proposed policy 

discussion.  

November 
2022 

Planting of Edible 
Plants in Restoration 
Areas 

Winter 
2022/2023 

Barr new technology 
report Feb 2023 

July 2022 

PFAS (Per- and 
polyfluoroalyl 
substances) in MN and 
RWMWD’s role. 

Winter 
2022/2023 Presentation Feb 2023 

July 2022 Miyawaki Mini-Forest 
Assessment Fall 2022 Barr new technology 

report Oct 2022 

July 2022 

Alum use for internal 
load control along with 
information on 
alternative solutions. 

Fall/Winter 
2022 Memo/Presentation Nov 2022 

     

 


	.divider pages
	2 - 02012023 Agenda Draft
	3 - Certificates of Appreciation
	Dianne Ward_Certificate of Appreciation 2023
	Lawrence Swope_Certificate of Appreciation 2023

	.divider pages
	4A - 1-18-2023 DRAFT Minutes
	4B - January 2023 Bill List
	January 2023 BSR-1
	December 2022 BSR-2
	Check Register-3
	RWMWD Check Register

	Cash Disbursements Journal-4
	2022_12_17 through 12_31-5
	RWMWD 2023 Summary Invoice v3-6
	Summary Budgeting Template

	Galowitz first page

	4C - Feb Grant Items
	23-01 CS Board Packet Summary
	23-01 CS Board Packet Plan
	L100-Site Plan
	Viewport-7
	2/L100



	4D - Liability Waiver
	CA01052022-3E Liability Coverage Waiver.pdf
	Waiver Form_signed.pdf

	.divider pages
	6 - Feb 2023 Board Packet_Permit_combined
	23-02 Coversheet
	23-02 Map
	23-02 Special Provisions
	23-02 Plan
	23-02 Variance Request
	Caretta Senior_Landscape_L2.1_11-23-2022

	23-02_21-17 WCA Notice of Decision 11-18-21
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Notice of Decision

	23-02_22-11 WCA Notice of Decision 9-16-22
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Notice of Decision

	23-02_23-01 Notice of Decision 1-23-23
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Notice of Decision

	23-03 Coversheet
	23-03 Map
	23-03 Special Provisions
	23-03 Variance Request
	23-03_22-18 WCA Notice of Decision 11-16-22
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Notice of Decision

	23-04 Coversheet
	23-04 Map
	23-04 Special Provisions
	23-04 Plan
	23-04 Variance Request Memo
	23-05 Coversheet
	23-05 Map
	23-05 Special Provisions
	23-05 Variance Request (1)
	23-05 Variance Request (2)
	23-06 Coversheet
	23-06 Map
	23-06 Special Provisions
	23-06 Variance Request (1)
	Re: Line 0802 STR 59-85 Rebuild Project Variance Request
	Introduction
	Variance Request

	23-06 Variance Request (2)
	23-06_23-04 WCA Notice of Decision 1-25-23
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Notice of Decision

	Feb 2023

	.divider pages
	7B - Pages from Feb Grant Items
	.divider pages
	11B - Tina_BC FC Resiliency_JJH2_XF2
	Project Work Plan
	Project team

	Scope of work
	Budget
	Schedule
	Project tracking
	Project milestones
	Monthly updates


	.divider pages
	12 - admin report
	02012023 Admin Report.pdf
	2023-01-13 MN Watersheds Legislative Update.pdf
	2023-01-13 MN Watersheds Legislative Update
	~2023 Platform
	Sheet1

	2023 Legislative Talking Points_v3
	AGENDA_v3
	Agenda – Wednesday, February 15, 2023
	4:00 – 4:30  Minnesota Watersheds Top Legislative Priorities
	5:00 – 5:50  Funding Updates
	6:00  Closing Remarks/End of Briefing
	6:00 – 8:00   Networking Event: Minnesota Watersheds Members and Legislators

	Agenda – Thursday, February 16, 2023
	7 am – 8:30 am   Networking Event: Minnesota Watersheds Members
	9 am – 4 pm   Meet with Legislators



	_Special+Meeting+PACKET.pdf

	.divider pages
	13 - 02012023 PSR
	Note: The location, brief description, and current status of each project described below can be found on the 2023 RWMWD engineering services story map.
	Project feasibility studies
	A. Interim emergency response planning for district areas at risk of flooding (Barr project manager: Gareth Becker; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	B. Kohlman Creek flood risk reduction feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk along Kohlman Creek to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination with the cities of Maplewood and North Saint Paul...
	C. Kohlman Creek/Wakefield Lake diversion feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk on Kohlman Creek by diverting high flows to the historic County Ditch 17. Work includes coordination with stakeholders, evaluation of alternatives ...
	This month, Barr and RWMWD staff met with the county and the county’s contractor to discuss site constants for flood risk reduction modifications. County staff provided updated direction regarding potential ponding locations on the golf course. Follow...
	This month, Barr reviewed alternatives for increasing the size of the diversion as well as corresponding changes to pond size in the golf course. We met with the RWMWD to review results and discuss next steps for coordinating with the county.
	In February, Barr will prepare a memorandum documenting existing constraints, diversion sizes, and impacts to inundation extents for the RWMWD to review. We will also review the water quality monitoring data that the RWMWD collected.
	D. County Ditch 17 improvements feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk northeast of Wakefield Lake along historic County Ditch 17 to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination with the C...
	The feasibility study was presented to the RWMWD managers at the January meeting. In 2023, Barr will work with the City of Maplewood to communicate flood risk to property owners.
	E. Phalen Village feasibility study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose of this study is to complete a feasibility evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near Phalen Village north of Lake Phalen to remove structures from the 100-year floodplain. Work includes coordination with the City of Maplewood, ...
	The feasibility study was presented to the RWMWD managers at the January meeting. In 2023, Barr and the RWMWD will work with the City of Maplewood to incorporate system modifications in the city’s street improvement project that mitigate existing floo...
	F. Ames Lake area flood risk reduction planning study (Barr project manager: Brandon Barnes; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	The purpose is to complete a planning-level evaluation of modifications to reduce flood risk near Ames Lake, supported by the City of Saint Paul. Work includes coordination discussions with Saint Paul; review of potential pipe alignments, land acquisi...
	The study was presented to the RWMWD mangers at the January board meeting. Barr is preparing a scope summary for the detailed feasibility study, including additional coordination with the Saint Paul Housing and Redevelopment Authority, which will occu...
	G. Owasso Basin area/North Star Estates improvements (Barr project manager: Sam Redinger; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)
	H. Double Driveway Pond optimization study (Barr project manager: Tyler Olsen; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

	Research projects
	L. Shallow lake aeration study (Barr project manager: Keith Pilgrim; RWMWD project manager: Bill Bartodziej)

	Capital improvements
	N. Targeted retrofit projects (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg)

	CIP project repair and maintenance
	R. Beltline and Battle Creek inspection (Barr project manager: Brad Lindaman, RWMWD project manager: Dave Vlasin)
	S. 2023 CIP maintenance and repair project (Barr project manager: Gareth Becker; RWMWD project manager: Dave Vlasin)
	The purpose of this project is to maintain existing systems and infrastructure owned and operated by the RWMWD and to assist and facilitate stormwater pond cleanouts to allow other public entities to meet their MS4 requirements.
	Work started on January 10 with removal of snow at access points for the anticipated pond cleanout sites. Miller Excavating, Inc. completed the NPDES application and received permit authorization. The 2023 CIP work will begin with pond cleanouts; Mill...
	T. 2023-2025 BMP maintenance program (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: Paige Ahlborg)
	U. New technology review (Barr project manager: Marcy Bean; RWMWD project manager: Tina Carstens)

	V. Natural Resources Update – Bill Bartodziej and Matt Doneux
	Gervais Mill Pond Aeration – update
	E-newsletter
	Social Media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram)


	.divider pages
	14A - 02012023 Board Action Log



